
City of Swartz Creek 
AGENDA 

Regular Council Meeting, Monday, May 8, 2017, 7:00 P.M. 
Paul D. Bueche Municipal Building, 8083 Civic Drive Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

3. ROLL CALL:

4. MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES:
4A. Council Meeting of April 24, 2017 MOTION Pg. 28 

5. APPROVE AGENDA:
5A. Proposed / Amended Agenda MOTION Pg. 1 

6. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS:
6A. City Manager’s Report MOTION Pg. 3 
6B. Monthly Reports (Park Board Draft Minutes, Check Register, Building & DPW) Pg. 38 
6C. Police Authority Record Agreement (Business Item) Pg. 57 
6D. Hometown Days Event Information (Business Item) Pg. 58 
6E. Sewer Debt Payoff Information (Business Item)  Pg. 101 
6F. Fence Bid (Business Item) Pg. 120 
6G. Carpet Bid (Business Item) Pg. 129 
6H. Consumers Street Light Work Orders (Business Item)  Pg. 137 
6I. Well Regulation Ordinance Draft  Pg. 145 
6J. Comcast Franchise Agreement (Business Item)  Pg. 158 
6K. Water Cross Connection Inspection Report Pg. 172 
6L. CDBG Renewal Notice (Business Item)  Pg. 173 
6M. Draft Budget – Fiscal Year 2018 Pg. 178 

7. MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:
7A. General Public Comments

8. COUNCIL BUSINESS:
8A. Police Authority Record Use Agreement RESO Pg. 17 
8B. Hometown Days Event Permit  RESO Pg. 18 
8C. Sewer Debt Payoff RESO Pg. 22 
8D. Fence Projects Award  RESO Pg. 23 
8E. CDBG Renewal  DISC 
8F. Carpet Project Award  RESO Pg. 23 
8G. Consumers Energy Street Light Work Order Approval RESO Pg. 24 
8H. Comcast Franchise Agreement Renewal  RESO Pg. 25 
8I. Board and Commission Appointments  RESO Pg. 26 
8J. Set Budget Hearing Public Hearing  RESO Pg. 26 
8K. Emergency Management Coordinator   DISC 

9. MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC:

10. REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS:

11. ADJOURNMENT: MOTION 

Next Month Calendar   
Downtown Development Authority: Thursday, May 11, 2017, 6:00 p.m., PDBMB  
Fire Board:  Monday, May 15, 2017, 6:00 p.m., Public Safety Building 
Zoning Board of Appeals:  Wednesday, May 17, 2017, 6:00 p.m., PDBMB 
City Council:   Monday, May 22, 2017, 7:00 p.m., PDBMB   
Police Authority:  Wednesday, May 24, 2017, 10:00 a.m., Mundy Township 

City Council Packet 1 May 08, 2017



Planning Commission:    Tuesday, June 6, 2017, 7:00 p.m., PDBMB 
Park Board:     Wednesday, June 7, 2017, 6:00 p.m., PDBMB  
City Council:     Monday, June 12, 2017, 7:00 p.m., PDBMB 

City Council Packet 2 May 08, 2017



 
City of Swartz Creek 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
Regular Council Meeting of Monday, May 8, 2017 - 7:00 P.M. 

 

TO:  Honorable Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem & Council Members 
FROM: Adam Zettel, City Manager 
DATE:   May 4, 2017 
 
ROUTINE BUSINESS – REVISITED ISSUES / PROJECTS 

 
 TAXABLE VALUES & OUTSTANDING APPEALS (No Change of Status) 

The taxable value of the city (prior to our board of review and closure of appeal filing) 
is up by $2,109,710 or 1.5%. This increase will be reflected in the July 1, 2017 – 
June 30, 2018 budget. This is phenomenal, relatively speaking. The downside is that 
appeals are still pending and can be filed to reduce this, perhaps even into negative 
territory. It is further depressing because this 1.5% growth reflects many new homes, 
the assisted living, and relatively strong property value increases. Our community is 
looking at a good year, but cities are still losing the war on keeping revenue in line 
with inflation and service needs.  
 
Concerning appeals, the city is preparing to do full appraisals on the Topvalco (Kroger) 
property and O’Reilly Auto Parts. These are newer submissions that will take some 
time to resolve themselves.  
 
I expect a future negotiation for the office building, for which we are awaiting some 
market data (Huizinga Properties). A complete listing of outstanding appeals is as 
follows (note that the S.C. Mini Storage is also settled). 
 

Year Parcel # docket Owner Petitioner's Assessed Taxable Assessed Taxable Status
2015 58-02-200-029 15-002787 S.C. Mini Storage Steve Johnson 765,300      765,300    550,000    550,000    stip pending
2016 58-02-200-029 15-002787 S.C. Mini Storage Steve Johnson 861,000      859,495    550,000    550,000    
2016 58-31-626-002 16-001553 Huizinga Properties Mark Pendery 131,800      131,800    85,000     85,000     answered 6/21/16
2016 58-36-576-012 16-002714 Topvalco/Kroger H. Adam Cohen 2,239,700   2,044,916  1,100,000 1,100,000 answered 8/2/16
2016 58-31-551-006 16-003390 O'Reilly Auto Parts Thomas Randle 523,900      453,942    150,000    150,000    answered  

 
 STREETS (See Individual Category) 

 
 MORRISH SIGNALS (No Change of Status) 

Mr. Svrcek is checking on the long term replacement schedule for the signal at 
Miller and Morrish. This is an older signal that will require modernization at some 
point, though this will be rather expensive. For the time being, the signal functions 
well and is providing an acceptable level of service and safety per the city’s 
engineers. We will set up a plan for timely replacement and optimization.  
 
The previous report follows: 
 
There has been more concerns about the signal at Morrish and Miller Road.  We 
had studied this intersection using the traffic engineers at OHM.  Their report 

City Council Packet 3 May 08, 2017



indicated that the level of service, overall, would not likely be improved with the 
addition of a dedicated left turn signal.  However, I have followed up with them 
regarding this matter. A note from Mr. Harris with OHM is attached. From a practical 
standpoint, it appears cost may be a bigger barrier at this point.  Please let me know 
if there are comments or if there is a collective desire to move forward with changes 
at this intersection.  
 
In addition to Miller Road, there has been a desire by some in the community to re-
engage the signal at Morrish Road at the raceway.  Anecdotally, it appears this will 
help with vehicles exiting the interstate and turning left onto the interstate. We have 
made an inquiry to MDOT regarding this process. They have acknowledged our 
inquiry but they have not provided an answer. Please let me know if there is any 
objection to moving forward. 
 

 2017-2020 TRAFFIC IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (TIP) (No Change of Status) 
The city has only one project slated for federal funding through the regional planning 
commission Traffic Improvement Program (TIP).  Fairchild is to be designed in 2018 
and constructed in 2019, which is the last year of the three year TIP cycle. After 
that, we hope that Miller, west of Morrish will be in the 2020-2022 cycle. Seymour is 
not on the radar at this point, though we may try to put it on the next cycle as well.  
 
Listed below is the breakdown for Fairchild, including federal funding: 

 STREET PROJECT UPDATES (Business Item) 
This is a standing section of the report on the status of streets as it relates to our 
dedicated levy, 20 year plan, ongoing projects, state funding, and committee work. 
Information from previous reports can be found in prior city council packets.  
 
Forestry is substantially complete in the reconstruction areas of the projects. 
Watermain should begin soon, but we are losing some time due to all the rain. 
Hopefully, this does not hinder progress much.  
 
It sounds like the preventative maintenance projects could begin in late May or early 
June. I will keep the city council and impacted neighborhoods informed of progress as 
we learn about the proposed schedule the engineer is working on.  
 
The survey of Daval Drive is underway. 
 
To complete the paperwork side of the lighting changes, we have one final step. Step 
one was to apportion funds and approve the concept. Step two approved the service 
agreement. Now, Consumers Energy desires affirmation of the work orders to remove 
and replace the specific poles. The work orders and a resolution are attached. This 
order does not reflect any new expenditures, service changes, or project amendments.  

 

Road 
Point of 

Beginning 
Point of 

End 
Length 
(Miles) Lanes 

Lane 
Feet 

Width 
(Feet) ADT 

Total 
Cost 

Federal 
Match 

Local 
Match 

Fairchild Cappy Miller 0.28 2 2956.8 44 2456 $312,306 $249,845 $62,461 
 

     

City Council Packet 4 May 08, 2017



The newsletter and direct mailer have been sent out. I am in the process of ordering 
onsite construction signs.  
 

 WATER – SEWER ISSUES PENDING (See Individual Category) 
 SEWER REHABILITATION PROGRAM (Update) 

Lining work is approved for Chelmsford and Valleyview Drives. Inspection of 
Winshall is also approved. It is expected that this work will be completed in the fall 
or winter of 2017. 
 
This program is on schedule and budget. Based upon current rates and existing 
fund balance, staff may recommend expending more in the next year or two on the 
sewer rehabilitation plan in order to get some higher risk assets completed more 
quickly. This could include Winshall Drive and Miller Road sections. 
 

 KWA (No Change of Status) 
It appears that Flint will not be participating in the KWA after all.  At a meeting with 
county officials on Wednesday, April 19th, we were informed that this should not 
impact our service or rates due to the nature of the arrangement that is being 
negotiated between the State of Michigan, Flint, and the Great Lakes Water 
Authority. For now, it appears Flint’s debt will still be provided for by other parties, 
and service to the city could begin as early as October.  
 

 WATER LOSS (Business Item) 
The water line leak on Miller Road has been repaired. It appears that a 45 degree 
flange that maneuvered the main under a large storm line began to separate years 
ago, initially resulting in marginal losses. We suspect this leak increased over time, 
but was not apparent due to a number of circumstances. The main was encased in 
concrete, enabling the water to diffuse into a larger area and a path of least 
resistance that eventually went into an adjacent concrete telecommunications 
conduit and subsequently into the storm pipe. Due to the pipes size, drainage area, 
and dry weather flow, the dry weather discharge that included this water was not 
remarkable.  
 
Moving forward, we will measure and assess the savings we expect from this leak 
detection program and report back to the city council. Based upon the future rates of 
the KWA, the city may be in a position to absorb increases, expend more on 
replacement water main, decrease rates, or some combination of those three 
options. No matter what the outcome is, the savings will result in more efficient 
service to rate payers.  
 
The city continues to work with the city’s provider of meters, meter registers, and 
meter reading equipment on a meter and billing software audit. This process will 
help educate new staff and bridge the gap between meter function and 
administrative billing. With Amy Nichols departure from the city, we now have Jody 
Key in the driver’s seat of the utility billing. I am pairing her up with our newest 
certified water system distribution operator, Rebecca Thiell, to develop a more 
thorough internal auditing program to find theft, faulty meters, improper billing, and 
leaks. These two will be able to share information and skills in such a way that 

City Council Packet 5 May 08, 2017



compliments a full view of field operations and administrative billing. I expect to find 
many areas of loss and incorrect billing. 
 

 WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT (No Change of Status) 
As part of our long term effort to plan for water main replacement, the state is now 
requiring submission of an asset management plan for water systems. This is a 
good practice, but it is somewhat premature for us since we still have unknown 
revenue and expense matters to work around (water loss and KWA rates). We also 
need to ascertain water main replacement in tandem with the street replacement 
program, since these investments occur simultaneously.  Since the street 
investment is also tied to uncertain future state road aid payments, we will face 
another unknown in our efforts to create a detailed program.  
 
Despite these setbacks, we can proceed with the submission to the state.  The city 
intends to use the Rural Water Program training as a means to have staff draft this 
plan. I will have more information about this soon. I don’t expect to incur any 
additional expenses in addressing this asset management plan.  
 
Regarding the practical needs to secure funding for our larger projects (Miller & 
Morrish, among others), Lou has put together some figures on our mid-term capital 
investment needs. It looks like we will need to spread this cost out over time and/or 
offset it if we are to be successful. As such, Mr. Svrcek and Mr. Fleury have been 
looking into the use of federal funds as a potential grant and lending source for 
water main. Because the life of these assets is so long and the cost so high, 
bonding or borrowing for their replacement is common. Lou feels we may be eligible 
for some grant funds.  
 
Moving forward, we will begin exploring some of these options. Clio, Davision, and 
many other communities rely heavily on these programs when their infrastructure 
needs come due.  

 
 SHARED SERVICES, POLICE DEPARTMENTS (Business Item) 

The city attorney has crafted an agreement to enable access of pre-existing law 
enforcement and personnel records to the Metro Police Authority. Access to records is 
an essential function for the Authority to conduct business, and the city does not want 
to be the gatekeeper as it relates to record provision to the Authority for criminal cases. 
Doing so would come at a great administrative cost, an increase in liability, and delays 
in investigations and Freedom of Information Act requests. This transfer was assumed 
with the transfer of the other assets, but the legal team feels better having this one 
page agreement set terms and expectations.  
 
In other news, the Authority is looking to modify its leases with the city and township. I 
do not have any details yet on how this will impact budgets, services, hours of 
operation, or overall costs. 
 

 HERITAGE VACANT LOTS (No Change of Status) 
I met with the Heritage Village Homeowner Association Executive Board on April 18th. 
They are solidifying which developers they would like to see build in the subdivision, as 
well as terms by which they would undertake such construction. Once this is 

City Council Packet 6 May 08, 2017



completed, the city will be in a position to negotiate sales and use terms in accordance 
with the city’s land sale policy.  
 
If negotiations meet the minimum objectives, sale instruments/agreements will be 
presented to the city council for review. If those are approved, a waiting period would 
commence that enables comment on the instruments. At that point, the city council 
would be presented with a final resolution to commence sales and enter into any other 
related agreements. The previous report follows: 
 
The association is also requesting that proceeds beyond the city’s investment be 
allocated and paid to the association in a manner reflecting the program executed with 
city-owned lots in Springbrook East.  
 
I think this is a great plan. I believe the highest priority is ensuring the success of the 
Heritage Village development. New homes that complement the existing neighborhood 
will enable this. Relieving the city of these real estate assets will also limit our exposure 
to ongoing carrying cost, as well as to provide some new tax revenues. Lastly, the lot 
sales should be able to relieve some of the financial burden imposed upon the 
community by the road assessment that resulted from the housing crisis.  
 

 WINCHESTER WOODS LOTS  (No Change of Status) 
The city has approved a proposal to begin a process that will ascertain feasibility and 
general costs to accomplish our storm management goals. Ironically, the engineer felt 
the area was too wet to access in mid-April to begin this process.   
 
With the understanding that there is not a censuses on how to proceed, the city intends 
to mail impacted parties about the status of the situation. There is a clear intent to 
involve them in this process as it relates to what the goals are and how we can 
collectively accomplish them.  
 

 NEWSLETTER (No Change of Status) 
The newsletter should have been delivered. Let me know what you think. 
 

 SUNOCO (Update) 
The agreement has been approved and executed. Our next step will be to review a well 
restriction ordinance, with the expectation that it is to be approved in a form similar to 
that within the agreement.  I have attached the draft. Please take a look at this. If there 
is no objection, I will tailor this to our format and bring it in for review as an ordinance as 
soon as notification to residents has occurred. 
 
We await word on the excavation, as well as payment.  

 
 ELMS PARK RENOVATIONS (No Change of Status) 

Per the Glaeser Dawes schedule, work in the park is expected to occur in August. The 
work should not have a large impact, but there will obviously be disruptions to traffic 
and some facilities as flatwork is installed.   
 

 WATER TOWER PAINTING (No Change of Status) 

City Council Packet 7 May 08, 2017



The low bid by Fedewa for $78,400 has been accepted, along with $11,000 for 
construction engineering/inspections. I expect the contractor to begin when weather 
permits.   
 
As far as the logo goes, this issue has been put to rest by a council vote. It would take 
action from the floor to reconsider.  
 

 TRAIL PLANNING CONCEPTS (Update) 
OHM has been investigating trail options. Some concepts have been looked at by staff 
and shared with the park board on May 3rd. These are still preliminary, and the 
engineers will be looking at one alternate route for the first segment, and a couple 
variants for the third segment by GM.  The alternates are thought to be optimized for 
land acquisition needs, if any, as well as construction costs. I will keep the council 
informed of this progress.  
 

 DISC GOLF CONCEPT (No Change of Status) 
Conceptual approval has been granted for a course in Winshall Park. With winter still 
raging (is it?), interest in fundraising has died down. I will keep the city council 
informed.  
 

 REDEVELOPMENT READY COMMUNITIES (No Change of Status) 
The resolution has been filed with the state, and staff is now working on the self-
evaluation. I will keep the city council informed of the progress on this engagement. 
Note that many of our other efforts are directly related to our status with this 
program, such as the branding, online services, and communication plans.  
 

 MEDICAL MARIJUANA LAND USES (No Change of Status) 
A consulting company presented on the topic of medical marijuana land uses and 
their impacts in Michigan at the April 4, 2017 Planning Commission meeting. The 
meeting was well attended for planning commission standards, and the presentation 
was well received.  No action was taken, but there appeared to be interest in 
considering an allowance for one or more of the state enabled land uses that were of 
the industrial or warehousing in nature (growing, processing, and testing).   
 
Currently, the city has no zoning ordinances that enable any of the five state 
licensed facilities (growing, processing, testing, transport, and provisioning). This is 
within the city’s rights to enable any, all, or none of these uses. Since no licenses 
can be granted until December of 2017, this is expected to be timely. I will keep the 
city council informed.  
 

 DEBT (Business Item) 
The sewer debt is ready to pay off, and the analysis indicates it will be a fantastic 
cost saving measure. This applies to yearly expenses and total present value of 
interest. The city’s payment requirement is $458,970.19. This amount is readily 
available in liquid assets and accounts for less than 1/3 of the funds liquid fund 
balance. With the ongoing capital improvement plan funded and the most critical 
asset refurbished in 2016 (Cappy Lane lift station), the sewer fund is in an ideal 
position to eliminate this debt (currently at 4%, gradually increasing to 4.35%). A 

City Council Packet 8 May 08, 2017



resolution is attached to do so. A report by PFM Financial Advisors LLC supports the 
findings and is included in the packet.  
 
I previously eliminated the wall of text that occupied this space in previous packets. 
See the report from March 27, 2017 if you are interested in more details. In short, the 
city’s remaining existing debt consists of: 
 
City Hall Construction:    $405,952.50 (March 2017 estimate) 

General Fund: $162,381.00 
Garbage Fund: $40,595.25 
Water Fund:  $101,488.12 
Sewer Fund:  $101,488.12  

 
Pension Liability:     $1,598,420 (December 31, 2015) 
    AFSCME:  $299,877 
    Police:  $608,765  
    Supervisors:  $689,778 
 
Water/Street Bond:    $1,950,000 
 
The position of the city was that it wanted to pay off the debt for which there were 
savings available and for which the city would realize interest savings. This would 
work well for funds like sewer that had extra savings (fund balance) and no 
significant capital needs. Based upon this information, high priorities were the sewer 
debt and general fund pension liability. This is especially true given the transfer of 
the police officers to the Authority, for which this pension fund is now closed as it 
relates to the city.  
 
The city hall debt is in its last five years. It might be worth paying off to save interest 
to the contributing funds. However, the general fund portion is sizable and the return 
on payoff would be much better in the pension, which is supposed to be building 
interest at 7.75% annually.  
 
That leaves us with the pensions. These liabilities are the biggest and are ‘losing’ the 
most in interest by virtue of the opportunity costs related to their high yield rates. This 
means that we have savings in accounts accruing almost nothing when such savings 
could be paid into the pension plan and gaining about 7% a year. It is the equivalent 
of paying off a high interest credit card.  
 
These liabilities are already accrued (owed for past service), and our funds are best 
placed here to gain value. Because all of the units are now closed, it also would 
place the city in a position to put these ‘legacy costs’ behind us and allocate future 
budgets to current services instead of these retirement liabilities.  
 
For the time being, there is not much we can do here. We await the 2016 actuarial 
report, which will indicate the new balances resulting from changes in calendar year 
2016. Of which, there were some significant contributions and circumstantial 
changes which should improve the city’s position.  
 

City Council Packet 9 May 08, 2017



 SEE CLICK FIX (Update) 
All staff training has been completed.  The application should be available to 
download by the time our meeting starts. We would like to conduct a soft opening of 
this service at that time, for about a month. During that time council members, staff, 
and limited related officials could explore and use the application for service needs.  
We can adjust the program accordingly and go live in June. 
 
We are very excited about how this could bring the community closer with common 
information sharing, efficient problem mitigation, and trust in governance.  
 

 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (Business Item) 
The city has been asked to affirm participation in the county CDBG program. Doing so 
used to guarantee funding for projects such as the streetscape initiative, the senior 
center, demolitions, and the Elms Park frontage improvements. The amount is 
approximately $30-$40K every three years.  
 
Because of demographic changes, the city can no longer spend these funds on 
‘hardscape’ items like street improvements.  The city CAN still support the senior 
center, the HOME program (grants for qualifying residential improvements in the city), 
and demolitions.   
 
Opting out would enable the city to go directly to the state for competitive grant 
assistance for qualifying programs. Such programs could include façade grants and 
business development grants for job creation.  The funds at that point would be project 
dependent and competitive, but the amounts could be much higher. The big downside 
is that the same demographic shift that made the city ineligible for ‘hardscape’ projects 
using the county entitlement option makes the city a no-go for most state funds as well.  
 
I have reached out to the state to check on our eligibility status for larger grants if we 
opt out. I don’t expect there is much opportunity there. There are no job-creation 
projects in the pipeline and we have a general lack of high scoring community attributes 
that would make us competitive (Swartz Creek is not a low/moderate income 
community, does not have a traditional historic downtown, etc.). Given the current 
findings, I recommend we keep on with the current program. I placed this on the 
agenda for discussion since the opportunity comes up once every three years.  
 
Concerning the current allocation, the city has $12,000 set aside for demolition and 
another $16,819 set aside from the Genesee County Home Program.  The CDBG 
agreement should be available to sign this month (it could be delayed until August!), 
thereby delaying action on 5157 Morrish until at least that time, longer if we cannot 
release bids until the contract is signed. I am working with the new staff planner, Mr. 
David Yeoman, to see if we can bid the project before the contract is signed in order 
to save time. We are also checking into the possibility for reimbursement. 
 

 DOG PARK (Update) 
The Eagle Scout candidates are back on the case. There is now a fundraising 
platform set up to make this happen (GoFundMe). If you are interested in 
contributing or know of another person or entity that might be, feel free to contact 
me. 

City Council Packet 10 May 08, 2017



 
 FIVE YEAR PARK PLAN (Business Item) 

Rowe Professional Services Company will begin work on the revised plan. I will keep 
the city council informed of any meetings, workshops, or reports.   
 

 RADAR FEEDBACK SIGNS (Update) 
I have begun looking into references for some of these products. There are not a lot of 
municipal users, since the products are newer. On the bright side, the prices are 
dropping very quickly. The previous report follows: 
 
As part of the traffic calming discussion, the street committee was introduced to radar 
feedback signs. I have included an example of one in the packet. These instruments 
range in price from $2,500 to $4,500 for solar powered fixtures. The committee feels 
this could be valuable as part of a community-wide program that engages in speed 
awareness. Given the popularity and noted effectiveness of our speed trailer in the 
past, I agree.  
 
The committee recommended that the city council invest in six of these that could be 
strategically placed around the city and relocated from time to time. Please let me know 
what you think.  
 

 OTHER COMMUNICATIONS & HAPPENINGS (Update)  
 

 HOURS OF OPERATION (Update) 
The city went live with the new hours on Monday, May 1. Let me know if you have 
any questions or comments. 
 

 MONTHLY REPORTS (Update) 
The April reports are included for your reference. 
 

 BOARDS & COMMISSIONS (See Individual Category)  
 PLANNING COMMISSION (Update) 

The planning commission meeting for Tuesday, May 2, 2017 was cancelled due to a 
lack of agenda items. It is very quiet in this arena. The only item on the radar is the 
eventual discussion on the medical marijuana land uses. This is on hold awaiting 
state regulatory guidelines.  
 

 DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY(Update) 
The DDA is scheduled to meet on May 11th. They are expected to act on a proposal 
for the purpose of planning the Sunoco site, as well as one to engage in branding 
efforts. Though no proposals were approved by resolution, there was an intention to 
proceed. 
  
The Board will also be looking at a draft budget for the 2018 fiscal year. Once again, 
it appears they will have a respectable revenue of about $60,000.  
 

 ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS (No Change of Status) 
This board met on March 15th for their annual meeting. Mr. Packer was selected as 
Chair, Mr. Plumb was selected as Vice-Chair, and Mr. Smith was selected as the 

City Council Packet 11 May 08, 2017



Secretary. No other business is conducted. Though no business is on the horizon, a 
training is expected this year.  
 

 PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION  (Update) 
The park board met on April 5th. Their draft minutes are attached, which explain 
their activities in detail. The park board will be meeting again on May 31st to work on 
the parade float! This is a week earlier, at the DPW garage at 5:30 p.m.! 
 
In addition to matters noted in the minutes, the discussion about a dedicated levy 
was extensive. There is an understanding that, while the current park operations are 
funded, there is a strong reliance on grants, fundraising, and volunteerism for new 
and replacement features. This brings the question of facility sustainability into 
question (e.g. will the city be able to replace the playscape at Elms Park?). It also 
created some concerns as it relates to investment in trails and other desired 
features. As such, I expect the long term funding of the parks to be brought up 
during the park plan process. Most communities rely heavily on donations and 
grants to supplement operations. Some do proceed with dedicated general funds or 
levies to ensure top-quality equipment and features.  
 
Volunteer groups are stepping up to work on parks this year!  
 

The United Methodist Church on Miller Road is going to tackle staining the 
playscape this May! They plan to be there on Friday-Saturday (May 12-13) and 
Saturday-Sunday (May 20-21). They will be looking for help! 
 
Cornerstone Baptist Church is going to be painting the structures in the 
Winshall Park tot lot. 
 

 BOARD OF REVIEW (No Change of Status) 
The March Board of Review Sessions have concluded. There were twelve 
petitioners, two clerical issues, and five disabled veteran exemptions.  With some 
petitioners filing multiple property petitions, the total impacted parcel count is thirty.  
 
The next meeting of the BoR is scheduled for July 18, 2017.  

 
NEW BUSINESS / PROJECTED ISSUES & PROJECTS 
 
 BUDGET AMENDMENTS AND FISCAL YEAR 2018 BUDGET (Update) 

Deanna has been working diligently on the fiscal year 2018 budget. We have a draft 
included in this packet. Note that this is hot off the press. There will be many more 
adjustments and changes forthcoming. A detailed review, along with narrative 
summaries has not been compiled. This is for basic familiarization only! A resolution 
is included to hold the budget hearing at the next meeting. At that point, the budget 
will be refined and better explained. There will not be any intention of approving the 
budget at this meeting or at the meeting on May 22, 2107.  
 
The timeline for our budget review is: 
 

City Council Packet 12 May 08, 2017



May 8, 2017: Initial review of budget and establishment of a public hearing 
May 22, 2017: Second review of budget and public hearing 
June 12, 2017: Third review and potential approval of budget 
June 26, 2017: Optional fourth review and potential approval of budget 

 
Summarily, budgets for all funds, street and water investment aside, are stable as it 
relates to revenues and expenses. You will see an expected fund balance deposit in 
the general fund for this year and a reduction for next year. Much of this results from 
the timing of revenues and expenditures of general fund monies for parking and 
lighting improvements. I expect the projected 2018 deficit to be trimmed before we 
meet again this month, indicating that we have a sustainable level of operations and 
investments.  
 
The local street fund is obviously showing the impact of the bond proceeds and 
expenditures across the fiscal years, and the major street fund is showing the impact 
of finishing Winston Drive.   
 
The waste fund is stable and within spending expectations, though showing a small 
deficit. 
 
The DDA fund is expected to spend down fund balance to improve the Sunoco site. 
 
Water and sewer are showing losses, however most of this is due to accounting 
depreciation. Please ignore that. Sewer is actually projected to be $100,000 in the 
black after capital investment. This fund is due for a rate reduction now that the lift 
station has been refurbished and the debt paid off. Water is losing cash due to water 
main replacement, but the big question here is the impact of the water loss 
reduction.  
 
The motor pool is also stable, with additions and losses based upon large 
purchases.  
 
Concerning future budget instruments and processes, Deanna has many changes in 
mind as we move forward. However, due to competing interests for her time, most of 
these will need to wait until next year. For now, she is working with pre-existing 
templates and existing information that will set us on course for next year.  There is 
clearly a learning curve as she familiarizes herself with her predecessor’s work. We 
also must contend with juggling the new police funding system, the city bond issue, 
the impact of the dynamic street schedule, and sewer bond status. It really has been 
taxing (pun intended) on staff to cope with all of the changes over the last year.  
 
As always, we have the opportunity to hold a special workshop session or 
informational session if the city council desires. Please contact me to perform a one-
on-one regarding the budget with myself and/or Deanna.  
 

 SET BUDGET HEARING (Business Item) 
A resolution is included to hold a public hearing on the draft budget.  We are about a 
meeting behind based on charter guidelines, but this is acceptable and, frankly, 
expected when given the modern process involved in determining Board of Review 

City Council Packet 13 May 08, 2017



taxable value revenues. With the hearing to be held on May 22nd, we will be in a 
position to approve the budget the first meeting in June. 
 
Concerning the draft budget, please let me know if you have any questions or wish to 
have an in-depth conversation prior to the budget hearing. I expect to have a more 
thorough review and some accompanying materials for the 22nd. Note that the budget 
will obviously require adjusting to reflect the uncertainties related to the selection and 
timing of 2018 street projects. 
 

 FIRE BOARD (No Change of Status) 
Contrary to popular belief, the relationship between the city and township is positive, 
and the staff of the governments do engage in regular communication. My 
understanding is that BOTH entities remain committed to the interlocal agreement 
that enables collective fire service for Clayton and Swartz Creek. However, there are 
obvious cooperation issues being observed at the fire board level. After engaging 
leadership with the township, I believe the relationship can be mended and 
improved.   
 

 COMCAST FRANCHISE AGREEMENT (Update) 
The ten year Comcast Cable Franchise Agreement is due to expire this year. I have 
received the replacement. Due to changes in state statute, these franchise 
agreements are processed very similar to applications through the Metro 
Telecommunications Act. This means that the state has striped most powers for local 
units of government for the purpose of streamlining processes, creating uniform 
terms/fees, and eliminating local road blocks to geographic service.  
 
The up side is that most of these agreements are identical, with providers expected 
to uphold basic, uniform standards of service, operations, rate provision, etc. The 
downside is that the state pretty much controls these terms, dictates the treatment of 
public rights of way, and makes approval mandatory within a certain timeframe.  
 
With that said, these agreements used to be provided for by ordinance. Due to 
changes in state law, a resolution will suffice. Mr. Gildner’s opinion on this matter is 
included in the packet.  
 
Practically speaking, Comcast is the only provider of cable services in the city.  The 
current agreement does not provide for Public Access charges (PEG), but it does 
include a 5% fee for operations in the city, which is the statutory maximum.  
 
The agreement is attached, along with a resolution that maintains the current fee of 
5%. The rest of the agreement is standard language that I have had Mr. Gildner take 
a look at. There are no objections or red flags that I believe would prohibit approval 
in favor of a ‘default’ approval under state statute.  
 

 HOMETOWN DAYS PERMITS (Business Item) 
Included with the packet are the resolutions related to the Hometown Days festival, 
including the 5K footrace.  Note that the road race route has been modified due to the 
work on Worchester Drive. I have included the cover letter from the Hometown Days 

City Council Packet 14 May 08, 2017



Committee.  I have also included the applications, insurance documents, property 
permission slips, and related documents.  
 
An additional resolution is included for the traffic control barricade rental cost. The city 
has always absorbed the cost of the contracted cost for barricade rental, and has 
formalized this contribution formally for the last two years via resolution. Prior to this, it 
was unclear if the cost was billable to Hometown Days or if it was a city cost. This 
practice resulted in the generation of invoices that were eventually written off as 
uncollectable. The solution is to have the city council affirm or deny the appropriation. I 
wrote a resolution in the affirmative to start since this conforms to prior year 
expectations. The cost is not expected to exceed approximately $1,750. The council 
did approve this in 2015 & 2016. 
 

 CARPET BIDS (Business Item) 
New carpet is desperately needed at the public safety building. This will be needed 
whether the tenant is the Metro Police or someone else. We have been waiting on this 
to see if service needs would alter the use of the building in a way that could impact 
floor covering. That does not appear to be the case. We have a resolution to approve 
the bid for carpet. 
 

 FENCE BIDS (Business Item) 
The city has completed extensive work on the lift station on Cappy Lane.  An 
agreement is also in place to paint the water tower.  While onsite, we noticed that the 
fences are in really bad shape. They also border on residential properties. My opinion 
is that these fences need to be replaced, and they should be replaced with screening 
fence to protect and enhance the residential properties around them. This is the 
expectation of new commercial/industrial land uses in the city. We have solicited bids 
for this purpose, as well as replacement chain link at the DPW yard. One bid was 
received, and a resolution is included to make this purchase.   
 
While, this is a hefty chunk of change, fencing is expensive and must be provided for.  
On the bright side, the life is quite long, and the city will be living up to standards and 
expectations for the treatment of residential properties.  
 

 APPOINTMENTS (Business Item) 
There are a number of appointments that expire on June 30th. The mayor has made 
recommendations for re-appointments and appointments. A resolution is included. 
 

 EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT COORDINATOR (Business Item) 
Council member Hicks has some ideas about emergency management that could 
benefit the community.  There is some thought that a volunteer committee or similar 
group could work to document and otherwise prepare the community for certain 
potential emergencies, creating an enhanced state of readiness. 
 

Council Questions, Inquiries, Requests, Comments, and Notes    
   

Small Cities: Swartz Creek will host Small Cities on September 6th.  
Email and Server: Many have noticed the email issue we have had. In line with 
our technology updates, we are investing in a new primary server. The old 

City Council Packet 15 May 08, 2017



primary server will then be used as the email server, which is in desperate need 
of replacement. This should give us many more years of functionality for all 
technology needs with the exception of the phone system. I suspect investment 
will be around $3,000 total for components and labor. 

City Council Packet 16 May 08, 2017



 
City of Swartz Creek 

RESOLUTIONS  
Regular Council Meeting, Monday, May 8, 2017, 7:00 P.M. 

 
Resolution No. 170508-4A MINUTES – APRIL 24, 2017 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Minutes of the Regular Council 
Meeting held Monday, April 24, 2017, to be circulated and placed on file. 
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 
Voting For:_______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________  

 
Resolution No. 170508-5A AGENDA APPROVAL 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Agenda as presented / printed / 
amended for the Regular Council Meeting of May 8, 2017, to be circulated and placed 
on file. 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 170508-6A CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council accept the City Manager’s Report of May 8, 
2017, including reports and communications, to be circulated and placed on file. 

  
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 170508-8A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE RECORD STEWARDSHIP 

AGREEMENT WITH METRO POLICE AUTHORITY 
  

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

WHEREAS, the Swartz Creek City Council and the Mundy Township Board 
established the Metro Police Authority of Genesee County, effective February 1, 2017, 
for the purpose of conducting police services to the respective municipalities; and 
 

City Council Packet 17 May 08, 2017



WHEREAS, the certain assets and responsibilities were transferred to the Authority, 
including but not limited to staff, equipment, and police powers; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that it is in the best interest of the City to provide 
access to pre-existing law enforcement and personnel records in order to efficiently 
conduct business related to investigations, day-to-day information services, and 
personnel; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek City Council agrees 
to the terms and conditions of the Police Service Record Agreement, as included in 
the city council packet of May 8, 2017. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council authorizes the Mayor to execute 
said agreement on behalf of the city. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Clerk shall be responsible for stewardship 
of said records as it pertains to the terms and conditions of their physical and/or digital 
storage, as agreeable to the Authority.  

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

***************************************Master Resolution********************************************* 
 
Resolution No. 170508–8B MASTER RESOLUTIONS:  HOMETOWN DAYS 

PERMITS, FIRE DEPARTMENT PERMIT, FOOT RACE – 
CROSS COUNTRY PERMIT 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________  

 
I Move the City of Swartz Creek approve Resolutions 170508-8B1 through 170508-
8B9, allowing for the various permits relative to the annual Swartz Creek Hometown 
Days events, Swartz Creek Area Fire Department and Riverbend Striders – Cross 
Country, to be held beginning Tuesday, May 30, 2017 and concluding on Monday, 
June 5, 2017, inclusive of all stipulations and conditions as specified and listed within, 
including the provision of valid insurance that lists the City of Swartz Creek as an 
additionally insured party for all events. 
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
********************************************************************************************************* 
Resolution No. 170508-8B1 HOMETOWN DAYS, STREET CARNIVAL, GENERAL 

STREET & PROPERTY USE PERMITS 
 

City Council Packet 18 May 08, 2017



I Move the City of Swartz Creek approve and authorize the Swartz Creek Hometown 
Days Committees’ application for street closing and City property use permits for the 
following locations: 
 

1. Morrish between Miller and Ingalls-Wade, Carnival.  
2. Holland between Miller and Ingalls, Vendor – Carnival.  
3. City Lot located at the southwest corner of Miller and Morrish, Carnival. 
4. Ingalls at Holland and Park Land located to the North and Northwest of 

the intersection of Morrish and Ingalls, Carnival.   
5. City owned property located along the North side of Fortino, West of 

Morrish Road, Car Show, Vendors, and Radio D.J., general parking.   
6. City owned property, 4438 South Morrish Road. 
7. City owned property, 4505 Fortino. 
8. City owned property, Fortino (Branoff) 
9. Fire Hall out lot properties. 
10. Use of DPW Yard and Generator (access subject to department). 

 
Street and City property use, unless otherwise indicated, begins Tuesday, May 30, 
2017 at 9:00 a.m. until Monday June 5, 2017 at 9:00 A.M.., for the purpose of, and 
authorization to conduct a carnival, vendor/display areas, car show and or other similar 
events under the following stipulations: 

 
1. Insurance certificate naming the City as insured in the amount not less 

than $1,000,000.00 (One-Million Dollars)  
2. Written permission from deed holders of any private properties to be 

used and appropriate insurance certificates naming such parties as 
additional insured: City of Swartz Creek, Cooks Diesel 5248 Morrish 
Road; William Kincaid & Kincaid Properties 5086 South Morrish: St. 
Mary’s Catholic Church 4413 Morrish Road; John Alexander; 
Pentecostal Church of God / Family Worship Center 4494 Morrish Road; 
Mark O’Brien 5099 South Morrish; Kallas Heating and Cooling 8077 
Miller; Swartz Creek Schools 8354 Cappy (High School Middle School); 
Scott Hoover 8280 Crapo; Swartz Creek Area Fire Department; Meijer 
Great Lakes Limited; Kevin McNault. 

3. Sufficient number of portable bathrooms placed and located, and liter 
control program in accordance and under the approval of Director of 
Community Services. 

4. General approval of the Chief of Police.  Traffic control and pedestrian 
safety plan in accordance with and under the approval of office of Chief 
of Police.  

 
Resolution No. 170508-8B2 HOMETOWN DAYS, STREET USAGE PERMIT, MOTOR 

AND PEDESTRIAN PARADE 
 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve and authorize the Swartz Creek 
Hometown Days Committees’ application for street closing / usage permit for 
Saturday, June 3, 2017 from 9:00 a.m. until 12:30 p.m. for purposes of conducting a 
parade, streets to be used include the high school performing arts center entrance, 
Miller Rd, and Frederick St under the following stipulations: 

City Council Packet 19 May 08, 2017



 
1. Insurance certificate naming the City as an additional insured party in the 

amount not less than $1,000,000.00 (One Million Dollars). 
2. No candy or other objects be thrown or handed from, to or at any vehicle, 

trailer, float, or similar, and further, that the Hometown Days Committee 
establish and maintain a list of all participants and/or entries in the 
parade that identifies a contact person, such contact to be informed by 
the Hometown Days Committee of the stipulation and motor vehicle code 
enforcement actions for violations thereof. 

3. General approval, and under the direction and control of the Office of the 
Chief of Police.  

 
Resolution No. 170508-8B3 HOMETOWN DAYS PERMIT, AERIAL FIREWORKS 

DISPLAY 
 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve and authorize the Swartz Creek 
Hometown Days Committee’s application for one fireworks aerial display to be held on 
Friday, June 2, 2017, at or shortly after dusk, with a cancellation date of Saturday, 
June 3, 2017, at or shortly after dusk, to be launched from properties directly west of 
the Swartz Creek Middle School Building, said properties owned by the Swartz Creek 
School District and Mr. Scott Hoover, under the following stipulations and conditions: 

 
1. Insurance certificate naming the City as insured in an amount to be 

determined adequate by the City Manager. 
2. Written permission from the aforementioned parcel owners along with 

acceptable insurance certificates naming said parcel owners as 
additional insured parties, in an amount to be determined adequate by 
the City Manager. 

3. Traffic Control Plan and administration by the Offices of Chief of Police 
and Director of Community Services. 

4. Detailed Plan submitted to and approved by the Fire Chief. 
5. All decisions concerning the event and cancellation thereof, if needed, 

under the direction and control of the Fire Chief. 
 
Resolution No. 170508-8B4 HOMETOWN DAYS PERMIT, OPERATE 

ENTERTAINMENT TENT 
 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve and authorize the Swartz Creek 
Hometown Days Committee application to operate an entertainment tent with the sale 
of beer and wine for consumption on the premises, along with live entertainment, to be 
held on Parcel No. 58-02-200-014, owned by William Kincaid and located 5086 
Morrish Road, south of Wade Street, beginning Thursday, June 2, 2016 12:00 PM 
through Sunday, June 4, 2017, 9:30 PM, under the following stipulations: 

 
1. Michigan Liquor Control Commission Approved Application with 

appropriate insurance in accordance with the rules of the L.C.C. and 
naming the City and all other property owners as additional insured 
parties, in an amount not less than $1,000,000 (One Million Dollars). 

City Council Packet 20 May 08, 2017



2. Portable bathrooms appropriately located and litter control program in 
accordance and under the approval of Director of Community Services. 

3. Traffic control and pedestrian safety plan in accordance with and under 
the approval of Office of Chief of Police. 

4. Adherence to all L.C.C. stipulations and regulations, state and local laws. 
5. No music after 11:00 p.m. Thursday, June 1, 2017 and after 1:30 a.m. on 

Friday, June 2, 2017 (Saturday Morning), and Saturday, June 3, 2017 
(Sunday Morning), and Sunday, June 4, 2017, 9:30 PM. 

6. Adequate security as approved by the Chief of Police. 
7. Adherence to and under the direction and control of the Office of the 

Chief of Police. 
 
Resolution No. 170508-8B5 HOMETOWN DAYS PERMIT, CEREMONIAL 

DISCHARGE OF A FIREARM 
 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council, pursuant to section 10-212(3) of the Code of 
Ordinances, approve and authorize the Swartz Creek Hometown Days Committee to 
discharge weapons as a part of a military concert and ceremonial military honor guard, 
to be held at the Swartz Creek High School’s outdoor football stadium, on Friday, June 
2, 2017, at approximately 9:00 p.m., in conjunction with a concert and aerial fireworks 
display, with a backup rain date of Saturday, June 3, 2017 at approximately 9:00 p.m. 
under the following stipulations and conditions: 

 
1. Insurance certificate naming the City as an additional insured party in an 

amount not less than $1,000,000.00 (One Million Dollars). 
2. The party(ies) discharging the weapon(s) must be a practicing military 

honor guard trained and capable in the handling of firearms.       
 
Resolution No. 170508-8B6 HOMETOWN DAYS PERMIT, CEREMONIAL 

DISCHARGE OF A FIREARM 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council, pursuant to section 10-212(3) of the Code of 
Ordinances, approve and authorize the Swartz Creek Hometown Days Committee to 
discharge weapons in conjunction with a Parade and as a ceremonial military honor 
guard, to be held along Miller Road on Saturday, June 3, 2017, at approximately 10:00 
A.M., under the following stipulations and conditions: 

 
1. Insurance certificate naming the City as an additional insured party in an 

amount not less than $1,000,000.00 (One Million Dollars). 
2. The party(ies) discharging the weapon(s) must be a practicing military 

honor guard trained and capable in the handling of firearms. 
 
Resolution No. 170508-8B7 WAIVER OF INSPECTION FEE, HOMETOWN DAYS 

COMMITTEE 
  

I Move the City of Swartz Creek waive the permit fees for the temporary structure 
(trailer) and electrical permit inspection fees for the Swartz Creek Hometown Days 
Committee. 

 

City Council Packet 21 May 08, 2017



Resolution No. 170508-8B8 TRAFFIC CONTROL APPROPRIATION 
  

I Move the City of Swartz Creek provide traffic control devices to ensure the safety of 
the public during the duration of the Swartz Creek Hometown Days event and hereby 
direct the Director of Public Works to order or supply barricades sufficient to do so at a 
cost not to exceed $1,750, appropriated to the community promotions department of 
the general fund. 

 
Resolution No. 170508-8B9 STREET USE PERMIT, ANNUAL 5K ROAD RACE, 

SWARTZ CREEK CROSS COUNTRY – RIVERBEND 
STRIDERS 

  
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
I Move the City of Swartz Creek approve the application for a street usage permit to 
conduct a 5 kilometer foot road race on Thursday, June 1, 2016, 5:00 PM – 8:00 PM, 
applicant: the River-Bend Striders - Swartz Creek Cross Country Team, in the care of 
Mr. Allen Murphy, race to be held in Winchester Village Subdivision, in accordance 
with the application submitted, under the direction and control of the Chief of Police 
and contingent upon the provision of valid insurance listing the City of Swartz Creek as 
an additionally insured party. 
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 170508-8C RESOLUTION TO PAY OUTSTANDING PRINCIPLE 

AND INTEREST FOR GENESEE COUNTY SEWER 
BOND OBLIGATIONS 

 
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek has a debt obligation to Genesee County for the 
retirement of the western trunk sewer extension bond, said bond scheduled for final 
payment in 2026, and 

 
WHEREAS, the city has analyzed the debt interest rate and associated costs in 
conjunction with current funds available to pay this debt in full, without penalty, and 
found there to be a present value of $61,350.43 to early payoff; and 

 
WHEREAS, the city council finds that early payment of this debt will serve a public 
purpose to reduce overall interest charges and immediate reduce expense needs of 
the sewer fund; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City of Swartz Creek that the monies 
to meet the principal and interest requirements and all bond obligations for sewer 
facilities will be secured from the following funds: 

  
SOURCE OF FUNDS 

City Council Packet 22 May 08, 2017



 
 
Funds Already Available     $458,970.19 
 
Sewer Fund Total       $458,970.19 
 
Grand Total       $458,970.19 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the city treasurer is authorized to amend the Sewer 
Fund to incorporate the addition of this appropriation and payment.  
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 170508-8D RESOLUTION TO APPROVE FENCE BID 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
WHEREAS, the city finds it necessary to remove and replace fencing around the water 
tower, at the city’s lift station site, and at the city garage; and 
 
WHEREAS, these facilities are in or near residential neighborhoods; and 

 
WHEREAS, the city desires to make these facilities secure while providing the 
appropriate amount of screening; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the City’s Purchasing Ordinance, Chapter 2, Article VI, 
Section 2-402, the city solicited sealed bids for the provision and installation of chain 
link fence and vinyl screening fence; and 

 
WHEREAS, the city received one valid bid; and 

 
WHEREAS, the low bidder is qualified. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek City Council 
accepts the low bid of $39,504 for the replacement of 645 feet of six foot tall vinyl 
fence and 270 lineal feet of chain link fence, said bid submitted by Action Fence of 
Lapeer, Michigan, expenses to be distributed to the Motor Pool Fund, Water Fund, and 
Sewer Fund as directed by the Treasurer. 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 170508-8F RESOLUTION TO APPROVE CARPET BID 

 
 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

City Council Packet 23 May 08, 2017



 
WHEREAS, the city finds it necessary to remove and replace the carpet in certain 
areas of the public safety building; and 
 
WHEREAS, this process requires approximately 1,962 square feet of carpet tile; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with the City’s Purchasing Ordinance, Chapter 2, Article VI, 
Section 2-402, the city solicited sealed bids for this project; and 

 
WHEREAS, the city received one valid bids; and 

 
WHEREAS, the low bidder is qualified. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek City Council 
accepts the low bid of $6,955.76 for the replacement of 1,962 square feet of carpet, 
said bid submitted by Owosso Carpet Center, Inc., expenses to be distributed to the 
General Fund. 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 170508-8G RESOLUTION TO APPROVE CONSUMERS ENERGY 

LIGHTING REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT WORK 
ORDERS 

   
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, the street lights in the city are owned and operated by Consumers Energy 
Company (CE), a Michigan utility with principle offices located at One Energy Plaza, 
Jackson MI, 49201; and 
 
WHEREAS, CE is the sole provider of street lights, electrical delivery, and 
maintenance on said lights in the County of Genesee, including Swartz Creek City; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, CE supplies street lighting services to the city under a current standard 
street lighting contract which outlines specific fixture counts and types, said contract 
restated on November 1, 2014 and revised and approved by the city council as 
recently as April 24, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City approved additional changes to the street lighting services 
agreement that include changes to lighting types and subsequent billing for LED and 
decorative lighting; and 
 
WHEREAS, Consumers Energy now seeks affirmation of the work orders to remove 
the existing lighting and install new lighting in accordance with the restated and 
amended lighting contract. 

City Council Packet 24 May 08, 2017



 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, it is hereby deemed advisable to authorize 
Consumers Energy Company to make changes in the lighting service as provided in 
the Standard Lighting Contract between the Company and the City of Swartz Creek, 
dated November 1, 2014, in accordance with the Authorization for Change in Standard 
Lighting Contract dated June 30, 2017. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that it is hereby deemed advisable to enter into a 
contract with Consumers Energy Company for furnishing lighting service within the 
City of Swartz Creek for a period of one year and thereafter from year to year, in 
accordance with the terms of the contract heretofore submitted to the city council.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the city agrees to the terms and conditions of 
forms 547 and 548 as included in the city council packet of May 8, 2017 and further 
directs the Mayor to execute said forms that represent the aforementioned terms and 
conditions. 
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 
Voting For:______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 170508-8H RESOLUTION TO APPROVE COMCAST FRANCHISE 

AGREEMENT RENEWAL 
   

Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to 2006 Public Act 480, MCL 484.3301 et seq, any Video 
Service Provider seeking to provide service in one or more service areas in the stat of 
Michigan after January 30, 2007, shall file an application for a Uniform Video Service 
Local Franchise Agreement with the Local Unit of Government; and 
 
WHEREAS, Comcast of Flint, Inc., a Michigan Corporation doing business as 
Comcast, has a preexisting franchise agreement with the City of Swartz Creek; and 
 
WHEREAS, Comcast is seeking a renewal franchise agreement with a video service 
area footprint as promulgated by Section 2(3e) of the Act, Option C (Attachment 1); 
and  
 
WHEREAS, the City finds the application and agreement to be within the terms and 
conditions of applicable statute; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City finds that the current rate of 5%, as applied to Section 6A of the 
agreement remains in the best interest of the city; and 
 
WHEREAS, action by the city is required within 30 days of receipt of the agreement, 
which will be May 21, 2017. 
 

City Council Packet 25 May 08, 2017



NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Swartz Creek City Council hereby 
approves the Michigan Uniform Video Service Local Franchise Agreement Renewal 
for Comcast, as included in the city council packet of May 8, 2017, with the provision 
that the fee by set at 5%. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the City of Swartz Creek City Council hereby authorize 
the Mayor to execute this agreement on behalf of the city. 
 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 
Voting For:______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 

 
Resolution No. 170508–8I RESOLUTION TO MAKE COMMISSION AND BOARD 

APPOINTMENTS 
 

 Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council concur with the Mayoral appointment as follows, 
said terms subject to provisions of the city charter, code of ordinances, state law, and 
various bylaws (rules and procedures): 

 
#170508-8I1 MAYORAL APPOINTMENT:   Joseph Edgerton 

   Board of Review 
Three Year Term Expiring June 30, 2020 

 
#170508-8I2 MAYORAL APPOINTMENT:   Samantha Fountain 

   Zoning Board of Appeals Alternate 
Three Year Term Expiring June 30, 2020 

 
#170508-8I3 MAYORAL APPOINTMENT:   Douglas Stephens 

   Planning Commission 
Three Year Term Expiring June 30, 2020 

 
#170508-8I4 MAYORAL APPOINTMENT:   Betty Binder 

   Planning Commission 
Three Year Term Expiring June 30, 2020 

 
#170508-8I5 MAYORAL APPOINTMENT:   Douglas Stephens 

   Zoning Board of Appeals 
Three Year Term Expiring June 30, 2020 

 
#170508-8I6 MAYORAL APPOINTMENT:   Ron Smith 

   Zoning Board of Appeals 
Three Year Term Expiring June 30, 2020 

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 
 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

Resolution No. 170508-8J RESOLUTION TO ESTABLISH A DATE FOR THE 
PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING THE 2017-2018 FY 
BUDGET 

City Council Packet 26 May 08, 2017



  
Motion by Councilmember: ________________ 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek observes a fiscal year, beginning on July 1 of 
each year; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the City Charter requires a public hearing on the proposed budget and 
encourages adoption prior to the third Monday in May; and,  
 
WHEREAS, city staff have prepared budget revenues and expenses in draft form in 
the timeliest manner practical based upon determinations available for taxable value. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek hereby sets a Public 
Hearing, to be held on Monday, May 22, 2017 at 7:00 PM, at the regularly scheduled 
City Council Meeting, or as soon thereafter as this matter can be heard, to hear public 
comments and needs regarding the Proposed 2017-2018 Fiscal Year Budget, and 
further, post a notice of the public hearing in the View News, with a copy of the 
proposed budget to be available in the Clerk’s Office beginning May 11, 2016.   

 
Second by Councilmember: _______________ 

 
Voting For: ______________________________________________________ 
Voting Against: ___________________________________________________ 
 

City Council Packet 27 May 08, 2017



 CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 
SWARTZ CREEK, MICHIGAN 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
DATE 04/24/2017 

 
 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00 p.m. by Mayor Krueger in the Swartz Creek City 
Council Chambers, 8083 Civic Drive. 
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
Councilmembers Present:  Cramer, Florence, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, 

Porath. 
 
Councilmembers Absent:   None.   
 
Staff Present: City Manager Adam Zettel, Clerk Connie Eskew, 

Director of Public Services Tom Svrcek. 
    
Others Present: Richard Abrams, Lania Rocha, Steve Shumaker, Jim 

Barclay, Lou Fleury, Steve Long, Tommy Butler, Joel 
McRee, Faye Porath.  

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 Resolution No. 170424-01       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Porath 
  Second by Councilmember Gilbert 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Minutes of the Regular Council 
Meeting held Monday April 10, 2017, to be circulated and placed on file. 
 

YES:  Florence, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Cramer. 
  NO:   None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
 Resolution No. 170424-02       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Cramer 
  Second by Councilmember Gilbert 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council approve the Agenda as, printed for the 
Regular Council Meeting of April 24, 2017, to be circulated and placed on file. 

 
  YES:   Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Cramer, Florence. 
  NO:   None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

City Council Packet 28 May 08, 2017



CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
  Resolution No. 170424-03       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Florence 
  Second by Councilmember Gilbert 
 

I Move the Swartz Creek City Council accept the City Manager’s Report of April 24, 
2017, including reports and verbal communications and recordings, to be circulated 
and placed on file.   
 
Discussion Ensued. 
 

YES: Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Cramer, Florence, Gilbert. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC: 
 
Lou Fleury, Rowe Professional Services Co., gave an update on street construction.  
Trees are down on Chesterfield, the big pieces will be removed and followed up by stump 
grinding.  
 
Richard Abrams, resident at 5352 Greenleaf Drive, informed everyone on the great 
performance by US Navy Band Sea Chanters at the PAC last Saturday night.  
 
COUNCIL BUSINESS: 
 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE 2018 STREET PROJECT BID PROPOSAL 
 

Resolution No. 170424-04       (Carried) 
  

Motion by Councilmember Hicks 
Second by Councilmember Cramer 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek owns, operates, and maintains a system of 
major streets, local streets, and water main, and  
 
WHEREAS, the city has a twenty year asset management plan on file that is funded 
in part by a twenty year street levy, and  
 
WHEREAS, this plan, which includes various levels of preventative maintenance, 
preservation, and reconstruction on city streets, as well as water main replacement, 
was assessed by the Street Project Selection Committee at its meeting on April 5, 
2017, and 
 
WHEREAS, the committee recommends seeking bids for a reconstruction project 
for completion in 2018 (year three), and 
 

City Council Packet 29 May 08, 2017



WHEREAS, such projects must be bid timely in order for construction to commence 
in 2018 with optimal pricing and the reconstruction portion requires much more lead 
time for preliminary engineering, and 
 
WHEREAS, with preventative maintenance and rehabilitation projects have yet to 
be recommended by the Street Project Review Committee, due to uncertainties in 
the current contract for 2017 projects 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek City Council 
affirms the recommendation of the Street Project Selection Committee to 
commence engineering work for the Daval Drive street and water main, a 
reconstruction project expected to cost $960,000 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council approves the engineering 
proposal by ROWE Professional Services Company, dated April 13, 2017, for an 
amount not to exceed $62,380 for design and bidding services related to the above 
projects, with appropriations to be made to Fund 101 (General), Fund 202 (Major 
Streets), Fund 203 (Local Streets), Fund 204 (Municipal Streets) and Fund 590 
(Water) as directed by the treasurer. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council directs the Mayor to execute 
said engineering proposal on behalf of the city.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City Council hereby extends the 
appointments and charge of the Street Project Review Committee through July 31, 
2017 in order to make recommendations for additional 2018 street projects.  
 
Discussion Ensued.  
 

   YES: Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Cramer, Florence, Gilbert, Hicks. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
RESOLUTION EXTENDING UNIT PRICES FOR SEWER INSPECTION AND LINING 
PROJECTS 
 
 Resolution No. 170424-05                (Carried) 
 

Motion by Councilmember Gilbert 
Second by Mayor Pro Tem Pinkston 

 
WHEREAS, the city selected Liqui-Force Services (USA) Inc., to perform certain 
sewer inspections and repairs in December 2008; and 
 
WHEREAS, Liqui-Force Services Inc., was selected based upon a competitive 
request-for-proposal process that included fixed unit costs for services; and 
 
WHEREAS, the scope of work was to span four years and terminate in December 
2012, but circumstances resulted in the delay of specific work items; and 
 

City Council Packet 30 May 08, 2017



WHEREAS, Liqui-Force and the city have previously agreed to extend the unit 
costs through June of 2017 for the purpose of completing work on the sanitary 
sewer system; and 
 
WHEREAS, Liqui-Force has offered to further extend their unit costs through June 
30 of 2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city finds the value, quality, and predictability of the pricing for such 
services to be beneficial to the city. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek hereby approves 
the extension of the unit costs and service affiliation, included other applicable 
terms and conditions of the original agreement for service, with Liqui-Force Services 
(USA) Inc., said pricing to be valid through June 30, 2019. 
 
Discussion Ensued.  
 

   YES: Pinkston, Porath, Cramer, Florence, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE 2017 SEWER LINING PROJECTS 
 
 Resolution No. 170424-06       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Pinkston 
  Second by Councilmember Cramer 
 

WHEREAS, the city selected Liqui-Force Services (USA) Inc., to perform certain 
sewer inspections and repairs in 2008 based upon a competitive request-for-
proposal process that included fixed unit costs for services; and 
 
WHEREAS, based upon the quality and reliability of work performed, Liqui-Force 
has remained the city’s contractor for these specialized services past the original 
2012 term of the contract; and 
 
WHEREAS, Liqui-Force has agreed to extend their unit costs through June of 2019 
for the purpose of completing work on the sanitary sewer system; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city council agreed to extend said units prices at their regular 
meeting on April 24, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, additional sewer rehabilitation work has been identified by staff and the 
city engineer based upon 2015-2016 inspections and consultation with the 20 year 
sewer plan. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek hereby approves 
the proposal and associated unit costs, in part, to perform rehabilitation on the 
sanitary sewer system as outlined for Chelmsford MH 180-184, as well as 
Valleyview MH 54 to MH 216 to MH 221, on the updated proposal dated April 17, 

City Council Packet 31 May 08, 2017



2017, in the amount of $149,965, plus a 20% contingency, funds to be appropriated 
to the Sewer 591 fund. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek hereby approves the 
proposal and associated unit costs, in part, to perform inspection of the sanitary 
sewer system as outlined for Winshall Drive MH 1-12, on the updated proposal 
dated April 17, 2017, in the amount of $25,753, plus a 20% contingency, funds to be 
appropriated to the Sewer 591 fund. 
 
Discussion Ensued. 
 

   YES: Porath, Cramer, Florence, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
RESOLUTION TO ASSESS DELINQUENT WATER, SEWER, WEEDS, SIDEWALKS, 
AND STREET IMPROVEMENTS 
 

Resolution No. 170424-07       (Carried) 
  

Motion by Councilmember Porath  
Second by Councilmember Cramer 

 
WHEREAS, the city, by virtue of enforcing certain ordinances and charter 
provisions, incurs expenses related to the improvement, maintenance, and/or 
replacement of private and public property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city also provides utility services, of which some recipients of said 
services have outstanding and overdue balances related to the same; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city’s ordinances related to the provision of water and sewer 
services, as well as those pertaining to the maintenance of sidewalks and noxious 
weeds, provide for the collection of expenses and related fees; and 

 
WHEREAS, such outstanding expenses, services charges, and fees are able to be 
assessed to real property per Chapter 10 of the City Charter. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City of Swartz Creek direct the 
Treasurer to prepare an audit of all outstanding debts owed to the City for 
delinquent water, sewer, mowing, sidewalk repairs, and sidewalk snow removal, 
and further, to cause such debts to be assessed against the property owner of 
record, in accordance with City Ordinance and State Statute, said debts to be 
placed against the summer 2017 tax collection roll. 
 

   YES: Cramer, Florence, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
RESOLUTION TO APPROVE CONSUMERS ENERGY LIGHTING CONTRACT 
ADDITION 
 

City Council Packet 32 May 08, 2017



 Resolution No. 170424-08       (Carried) 
   

Motion by Councilmember Cramer  
Second by Councilmember Florence 

 
WHEREAS, the street lights in the city are owned and operated by Consumers 
Energy Company (CE), a Michigan utility with principle offices located at One 
Energy Plaza, Jackson MI, 49201; and 
 
WHEREAS, CE is the sole provider of street lights, electrical delivery, and 
maintenance on said lights in the County of Genesee, including Swartz Creek City; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the operations and terms, including pricing, under which such services 
are delivered are regulated by the Michigan Public Service Commission; and  
 
WHEREAS, CE supplies street lighting services to the city under a current standard 
street lighting contract which outlines specific fixture counts and types, said contract 
restated on November 1, 2014; and  
 
WHEREAS, this contract has been revised and approved by the city council as 
recently as April 10, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, additional changes in lighting types and subsequent billing for LED and 
decorative lighting have been requested by the city; and 
 
WHEREAS, approval of the amended contract is required to effect this change. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Swartz Creek City Council 
hereby agrees to the proposed amendments to the CE street lighting contract, as 
included in the city council packet for April 24, 2017, and further directs the Mayor to 
execute said contract. 
 

   YES: Florence, Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Cramer. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 

Radar Feedback Signs                   Discussion 
 
Adam Zettel, City Manager commented that the street project review committee would like 
the council’s feedback on purchasing radar feedback signs to attempt to address traffic 
calming.  These would be, if chosen to purchase, funded out of the street funds. 
Councilmember Porath commented that they do get your attention. Councilmember Hicks 
concerned on battery life and costs related to that.   Mr. Zettel asked if council is interested 
he would come back at future meeting with more information. Councilmember Florence 
commented this may be something we could use on Seymour Road. Councilmembers 
consensus is they would like more information about them.   
 
 
 

City Council Packet 33 May 08, 2017



RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT FOR PARK 
PLAN AMENDMENT SERVICES 
 

Resolution No. 170424-09       (Carried) 
 

Motion by Councilmember Florence 
Second by Councilmember Cramer  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Swartz Creek owns operates and maintains a system of 
parks in the community, including grounds, facilities, and equipment; and 
 
WHEREAS, the State of Michigan requires municipalities to have a valid five year 
park and recreation plan on file in order to be eligible for related state support and 
grants; and 
 
WHEREAS, the validity of said plans is conditioned upon the meeting of certain 
narrative, procedural, and technical process and content; and 
 
WHEREAS, the current plan that the city maintains was approved by the city 
council on January 28, 2013 and will expire on December 31, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the city desires to retain a valid plan so that grant eligibility is not 
compromised and so that the community may rely on current information and goals 
when establishing annual park related objectives; and 
 
WHEREAS, Rowe Professional Services Company, the creator and amender of the 
city’s current park plan, has submitted a professional service quote and scope of 
work to amend the existing plan so that it complies with the State of Michigan 
Department of Natural Resources requirements. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Swartz Creek City Council 
accepts the proposal, dated April 13, 2017, in the amount of $5,500 for completion 
of the 2018 City of Swartz Creek Five Year Park and Recreation Plan. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council hereby directs the city manager 
to sign the professional service proposal; to post public workshop, meeting, and 
hearing notices as needed; and to submit necessary documents to the DNR to 
secure approval of the plan. 
 
Discussion Ensued. 
 

   YES: Gilbert, Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Cramer, Florence. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
RESOLUTION TO PURCHASE ROAD SALT 
 
 Resolution No. 170424-10       (Carried) 

 
   

City Council Packet 34 May 08, 2017



Motion by Councilmember Hicks 
  Second by Councilmember Gilbert 

 
WHEREAS, the city finds it necessary to control ice and snow accumulation on 
public streets and parking areas with the application of road salt during winter 
months; and 
 
WHEREAS, this process requires approximately 1,100 tons of rock salt during a 
winter season; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City’s Purchasing Ordinance, Chapter 2, Article VI, Section 2-406 
provides for and encourages cooperative government purchasing practices; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Genesee County Road Commission has previously bid and/or 
negotiated the purchase of rock salt for application to public rights of way during 
those relentless and invasive Michigan winters; and 

 
WHEREAS, the GCRC negotiated a salt price for the coming winter, with year over 
year decrease, with Detroit Salt Company of 12841 Sanders St., Detroit, at a unit 
cost of $53.40 per ton, and a cooperative purchasing invitation has been extended 
to the City from the Genesee County Road Commission on April 18, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City finds the per-ton cost of $53.40 to be extremely competitive. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I MOVE the City of Swartz Creek City accept the Genesee 
County Road Commission’s cooperative purchasing agreement and appropriate an 
amount not to exceed $58,740, plus 10% contingency, for the purchase of rock salt 
from the Detroit Salt Company, expenses to be distributed proportionate to use at 
the direction of the City’s Treasurer. 
 
Discussion Ensued. 

 
  YES: Hicks, Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Cramer, Florence, Gilbert. 

NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 
 
COMMISSION APPOINTMENT 
 
 Resolution No. 170424–11       (Carried) 

 
  Motion by Councilmember Gilbert 
  Second by Mayor Pro Tem Pinkston 

 
I Move the Swartz Creek City Council concur with the Mayoral appointment as 
follows, said terms subject to provisions of the city charter, code of ordinances, 
state law, and various bylaws (rules and procedures): 

 
#170424-11 MAYORAL APPOINTMENT:   Nicole LaBeau 

   Downtown Development Authority 
Remainder of Four - Year Term Expiring March 31, 2018 
 

City Council Packet 35 May 08, 2017



YES: Krueger, Pinkston, Porath, Cramer, Florence, Gilbert, Hicks. 
NO: None.  Motion Declared Carried. 

 
MEETING OPENED TO THE PUBLIC: 
 
Joel McRee, resident at 5063 Brady Street, spoke of the speeding and careless driving on 
Ingalls, especially in the morning. He thinks if an officer sat down there in the morning he 
would be giving out a lot of tickets.  He also complained that the bicycle lane was being 
used as a turning lane.   
 
Richard Abrams, resident at 5352 Greenleaf Drive, he wanted to mention the loss of a 
resident, Lloyd Coon who passed away and he will sadly miss him.   
 
REMARKS BY COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
Councilmember Porath commented on the speed limit on Morrish Road headed south into 
town. He would like it to be raised.  
 
Councilmember Cramer wanted to thank everyone for all the hard work the city team puts 
together and makes happen.  We were honored by the Navy’s performance at the PAC.  
He wanted to know how close the city is in regards to being a redevelopment ready 
community. Mr. Zettel commented the process will take at least six months. 
 
Councilmember Florence commented on stop signs and speed limits.  He doesn’t think 
stop signs work well, people don’t stop. 
 
Councilmember Hicks the PAC is quite an asset to the city.  The Easter egg hunt was cute 
and thanked all who helped, especially Jim Barclay and Connie King.  
 
Councilmember Gilbert attended the GAIN meeting and reported numbers for the last six 
months. He also commented about Frontier working on poles and hopes that the one on 
his property will be taken down one day.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Pinkston mentioned the speed limit on Seymour Road. He reported the 
Winchester Crime Watch fundraiser raised almost $1800 and they will be using that money 
to purchase neighborhood crime watch signs and he wanted to thank Jim Barclay 
everything.   
 
Mayor Krueger really like the new name pins the councilmembers received.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

Resolution No. 170424-12       (Carried) 
 
  Motion by Councilmember Pinkston 
  Second by Councilmember Gilbert 
 
 I Move the Swartz Creek City Council adjourn the regular meeting at 8:41 p.m. 
 

City Council Packet 36 May 08, 2017



  Unanimous Voice Vote. 
 
 
 
___________________________   _____________________________ 
David A. Krueger, Mayor     Connie Eskew, City Clerk   
    

City Council Packet 37 May 08, 2017



CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 
SWARTZ CREEK, MICHIGAN 

PARK AND RECREATION ADVISORY BOARD 
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING 

May 3, 2017 
 

Meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Rae Lynn Hicks at the Paul D. Bueche Municipal Building. 
 
Members Present: James Barclay, Ryan Bueche, Rick Henry, Rae Lynn Hicks, Joe Perreault, & Dennis 
Reno 
 
Members Absent: Larry Cummings, Connie Eskew, & Trudy Plumb 
 
Staff Present: Adam Zettel & Tom Svrcek 
 
Others Present: Lania Roche, Steve Shumaker, & Dennis Pinkston 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Motion by Henry, to approve agenda of May 3, 2017, supported by Barclay. 

Motion carried. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Motion by Henry, to approve minutes of April 5, 2017, supported by Bueche 

Motion carried. 
 
MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC: Mr. Pinkston said he was present to make sure everyone stayed honest! 
 
COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD: 

A. April 5, 2017 Minutes 
B. Staff Letter 
C. Park Plan Update Work Scope 
D. Draft Trail Schematics 
E. Equipment Prices and Fundraising Proceeds 

REPORTS: 
A. DPW REPORT: Mr. Svrcek said the parks were open and functioning. He was 

preparing for a number of volunteer clean up days in May that would involve the 
cemetery, Elms Park playscape and Winshall Park tot lot. He noted that mowing was 
problematic in low areas due to the rain, but they will catch up. 
 

OLD BUSINESS: 
A. Elms Park Updates: The contractor will do the concrete work in August, perhaps 

beginning the last week of July.  
 

B. Fundraising:  
 

a. Mr. Zettel stated that the anonymous donor indicated he/she would sent a 
check for $4,250 to support the tot lot.  This would bring the current total 
received up to $17,371.72.  

b. There was discussion about using clearance equipment. After much 
conversation, it was thought that this option should be exercised in the 

City Council Packet 38 May 08, 2017



future. However, because the current purchase was so widely referenced in 
donation solicitation, it was felt that the savings could undermine the 
project.  Site planning for the tot lot will begin in July. Joe said he would 
help. 

c. Mr. Reno is going to put effort into the pumpkin sale. 
d. Ryan will select a spot for the parade, Adam will order the banner, Rae Lynn 

has a trailer, and others will supply float props. The float will be assembled 
at the DPW yard beginning at 5:30 p.m. on Wednesday, May 31.  

e. Ryan said he would be available for the slip and slide. The date was set. 
Also, Mr. Svrcek will work on getting carpet padding.  
 

NEW BUSINESS:  
 

A. Trail Updates: Schematic plans were included in the packet. Adam indicated that 
alternates were in the works for phase 3 and phase 2, which would include shorter, 
less expensive routes. However, more owners may need to be involved in these 
options. Detailed renderings will be reviewed at a future meeting.  

B. Park Plan Update: Rowe will be working on the next generation park plan. This plan 
will update needs and assets based upon recent changes (e.g. Elms updates, disc 
golf need, dog park, etc.). The plan is also expected to include a more pronounced 
and defined trail plan. Discussion ensued about a specific levy to fund parks. This 
was not pursued as a recommendation to the city council at the current time, but 
the need for it is something that could be discussed with the new park plan.  

 
MEETING OPEN TO THE PUBLIC: No comments. 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: Assistance in preparing equipment at Winshall Park for paint was 
requested. Tom said he could have city crews address this. Pavers under a bench at the Winshall tot lot 
were noted as broken.  

ADJOURNMENT: Meeting adjourned at 7:25 p.m. 

NEXT MEETING: May 31, 2017, 5:30 p.m. at the Department of Public Works building. 

  

_____________________________________ 
Connie Eskew, Secretary 

 

City Council Packet 39 May 08, 2017



05/02/2017                                    CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK                                              
                                                          CHECK DATE FROM 04/01/2017 - 04/30/2017                                              

Highlighted amount is total for that vendor
Check Date Check Vendor Name Description Amount

Bank GEN CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNT
04/04/2017 43402 FIDELITY SECURITY LIFE INSUR/EYEMED APRIL 17 VISION RETIREES(6)/COBRA(1) 33.19
04/10/2017 43403 ADS PLUS PRINTING LLC NAMEPLATES (2)/BARCLAY/K BROWN 32.00

04/10/2017 43404 ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL MATS, SUPPLIES 32.72
UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 101.89

134.61

04/10/2017 43405 BRADYS BUSINESS SYSTEMS COPY MACH MAINT AGREEMENT 1,047.87
04/10/2017 43406 BRIANA SANDERS UB REFUND FOR 5185 WINSHALL 73.85

04/10/2017 43407 CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 12/20/16-3/20/17 UB 8083 CIVIC 447.27
12/20/16-3/20/17 UB 8095 CIVIC 180.35
12/20/16-3/20/17 UB 8100 CIVIC 1,115.07
12/20/16-3/20/17 UB 4125 ELMS 273.27
12/20/16-3/20/17 UB 5121 MORRISH 165.89
12/20/16-3/20/17 UB 5363 WINSHALL 273.27
12/20/16-3/20/16 UB 8059 FORTINO 51.22

2,506.34

04/10/2017 43408 CLARK FIRE & SAFETY INC FIRE EXT. MAINTENANCE 450.50
04/10/2017 43409 CONSUMERS ENERGY 3/6-4/3/17 A 4510 MORRISH RD 32.92
04/10/2017 43410 CONSUMERS ENERGY 3/6-4/3/17 A 5121 MORRISH RD 817.50
04/10/2017 43411 CONSUMERS ENERGY 3/6-4/3/17 A 5257 WINSHALL DR 22.57
04/10/2017 43412 CONSUMERS ENERGY 3/6-4/3/17 A 5361 WINSHALL DR 8369 24.31
04/10/2017 43413 CONSUMERS ENERGY 3/6-4/3/17 A 5361 WINSHALL DR #2 RESTRMS 25.51
04/10/2017 43414 CONSUMERS ENERGY 3/6-4/3/17 A 8059 FORTINO DR 53.28
04/10/2017 43415 CONSUMERS ENERGY 3/6-4/3/17 A 8083 CIVIC DR 705.40
04/10/2017 43416 CONSUMERS ENERGY 3/6-4/3/17 A 8095 CIVIC DR 794.79
04/10/2017 43417 CONSUMERS ENERGY 3/6-4/3/17 A 8011 MILLER RD 22.57
04/10/2017 43418 CONSUMERS ENERGY 3/6-4/3/17 A 8100 CIVIC DR 1,185.44
04/10/2017 43419 CONSUMERS ENERGY 3/6-4/3/17 A 8499 MILLER RD 24.44
04/10/2017 43420 CONSUMERS ENERGY 3/6-4/3/17 A 9099 MILLER RD 31.78
04/10/2017 43421 CONSUMERS ENERGY 3/1-3/31/17 SIRENS TRAFFIC LIGHTS 1997 27.08
04/10/2017 43422 CONSUMERS ENERGY 3/1-3/31/17 TRAFFIC LIGHTS 1781 408.99
04/10/2017 43423 CONSUMERS ENERGY 3/1-3/31/17 ELMS PARKING LOT AREA LIGHTS 28.40
04/10/2017 43424 CONSUMERS ENERGY 3/1-3/31/17 4524 MORRISH RD 43.23

04/10/2017 43425 DONALD KORTH REWIRED FAX LINE AND INSTALLED FAX 100.00
UPDATE WORK STATIONS CITY HALL/POLICE 300.00

400.00

04/10/2017 43426 FAMILY FARM AND HOME INC GLOVES 3 PR 46.97
GLOVES 8.49

55.46

04/10/2017 43427 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #3386 R900 V4 WALL MIU (20) 1,980.00
04/10/2017 43428 FLINT JOURNAL 1 YR SUBSCRIPTION 4/1/17-4/1/18 244.40
04/10/2017 43429 FLINT WELDING SUPPLY FAX/CYLINDER COMPRESSED OXYGEN 5.00

04/10/2017 43430 GILL ROYS HARDWARE HUMIDIFIER TREATMENT 9.59
PAINT/PAINTING SUPPLIES 181.07
CORNER IRON (2) 5.18
NUTS, BOLTS, SCREWS 31.92
RED STORAGE HOOK (2) 4.78
SHELF (2)/TILE BIT/BRACKET (4)/FASTENERS 25.85
SAND PAPER 0.59
4 PC PAINT BRUSH SET 8.99
SOAP/CLEANING PRODUCTS/PROPANE REFILL 44.52
POWER BIT/NUTS, BOLTS, SCREWS 2.21

City Council Packet 40 May 08, 2017



12 PK JERSEY GLOVES 8.99
8-HOLE PAD/KRAZY GLUE 32.57
MAGNETIC KEY HOLDER 2.99
GLOVES (2)/SCOOP 26.57
BACTERIA TREATMNT/CLEANER/SOAP (2) 17.56
QUIK J B WELD EPOXY 6.99
TIDE 17.99
ALMOND ENAMEL/PAINT/BRUSH SET 21.17
1 GAL WHITE PAINT/BRUSH 35.78
RETURN WHITE SHELF (11.18)
MARCH 2017 DISCOUNT (38.65)

435.48

04/10/2017 43431 INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS KITCHEN ROLL TOWELS (2)/BATH TISSUE (2) 197.52
04/10/2017 43432 JAMS MEDIA LLC WEED NOTICE/BOR (3) 325.80
04/10/2017 43433 LANDMARK APPRAISAL CO APRIL 2017 FY17 ASSESSING SERVICES OCTOB 2,466.25
04/10/2017 43434 LETAVIS ENTERPRISES INC. CAR WASHES OCT-DEC 2016 337.50
04/10/2017 43435 MICHIGAN ELECTRIC SUPPLY COMPANY HARD HAT (3) 53.78
04/10/2017 43436 NOTARY EXPRESS INC CORPORATE NOTARY KIT K BROWN 89.99
04/10/2017 43437 ROWE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CO DAVAL RECONSTRUCTION 3,710.00
04/10/2017 43438 SIMEN FIGURA & PARKER PLC MARCH 2017 GEN'L/TRAFFIC/ORDIN 756.00
04/10/2017 43439 SUBURBAN AUTO SUPPLY WIPER BLADE 9.99
04/10/2017 43440 SUPER FLITE OIL CO INC 3/1-3/31/17 FUEL USAGE - DPW 888.55
04/10/2017 43441 SUSIE COLEMAN UB REFUND FOR 8481 CHESTERFIELD 203.69
04/10/2017 43442 SWARTZ CREEK AREA FIRE DEPT. MARCH 2017 2017 FIRE BUDGET & MONTHLY RU 4,900.74

04/18/2017 43443 BLUE CARE NETWORK-EAST MI MAY 2017 RETIREE MEDICAL KELLY 744.58
MAY 2017 RETIREE MEDICAL O'BRIEN 1,319.16
MAY 2017 RETIREE MEDICAL CLOLINGER 1,348.51
MAY 2017 RETIREE MEDICAL TYLER 724.66

4,136.91

04/18/2017 43444 CONNIE ESKEW ADVANCE FOR MAY 2 2017 ELEC SUPP/FOOD 100.00
04/18/2017 43445 CONSUMERS ENERGY 3/8-4/5/17 A 6425 MILLER PARK & RIDE 69.26
04/18/2017 43446 CONSUMERS ENERGY 3/8-4/5/17 4125 ELMS RD PAVILION 4437 27.24
04/18/2017 43447 CONSUMERS ENERGY 3/8-4/5/17 A 4125 ELMS RD 4353 30.17
04/18/2017 43448 DELTA DENTAL PLAN MAY 2017 RETIREE DENTAL (6)/COBRA (1) 382.94
04/18/2017 43449 DONALD KORTH IMPERIUM 2U LP INTEL QUAD CORE SERVER 1,939.83
04/18/2017 43450 STATE OF MICHIGAN NPDES PERMIT 400.00
04/18/2017 43451 SUSAN ARVOY CLERK TRAINING CLASS LANSING, MI 115.35
04/18/2017 43452 U. S. POST OFFICE POSTAGE FOR SPRING NEWSLETTER 670.42
04/18/2017 43453 UNITED METHODIST CHURCH -SW CK MAY 2 2017 SPECIAL ELECTION (JOHNSON ROO 375.00

04/25/2017 43454 ADS PLUS PRINTING LLC 2500 MOVIE NIGHT FLYERS CARDS 349.00
SPRING NEWSLETTERS (2500) 1,146.28

1,495.28

04/25/2017 43455 ALDRIDGE TRUCKING CO INC LIMESTONE 2,025.66

04/25/2017 43456 ARROW UNIFORM RENTAL MATS, SUPPLIES 32.72
UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 116.46
MATS, SUPPLIES 32.72
UNIFORMS, MATS, SUPPLIES, ENV. 101.89

283.79

04/25/2017 43457 BILLER PRESS & MFG INC PARKING TICKETS (350) 217.07
04/25/2017 43458 COMCAST BUSINESS 4/26-5/25/17 CITY HALL 329.60
04/25/2017 43459 DELUX TROPHIES & AWARDS NAME BADGES-COUNCIL & PLANNING COMMISSIO 140.00

04/25/2017 43460 FORREST M SPITZER WIND STORM TREE WORK 675.00
TREE WORK 5207 GREENLEAF 75.00

750.00

04/25/2017 43461 GAINES TOWNSHIP (12) ID CARDS 60.00
04/25/2017 43462 GENESEE CTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER SEWER 1/1-3/31/17 5,160,799 CF 148,959.87

City Council Packet 41 May 08, 2017



04/25/2017 43463 GENESEE CTY DRAIN COMMISSIONER WATER 3/1-3/29/17 2,046,234 118,593.23
04/25/2017 43464 INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS OFFICE SUPPLIES 99.94
04/25/2017 43465 JERRY'S TIRE 2 TIRES/DISMOUNT & MOUNT 506.00
04/25/2017 43466 KEIZER-MORRIS INTERNATIONAL INC COLD PATCH 577.30
04/25/2017 43467 KLEE MFG & DIST FLAGS (7)/VETERANS MEMORIAL 377.00
04/25/2017 43468 MICHIGAN ASSOC OF PLANNING ANNUAL GROUP MEMBSHP 7/1/17-6/30/18 800.00
04/25/2017 43469 MY-CAN LLC PORTAJON RENTAL ELMS PARK 3/10-4/7/17 95.00
04/25/2017 43470 ROWE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CO CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING 2017 STREET PRO 1,082.50
04/25/2017 43471 STATE OF MICHIGAN DEPT TRANS TRAFFIC SIGNAL ENERGY 4 QTR 2016 I-69 MO 40.44
04/25/2017 43472 STATE OF MICHIGAN-DEQ WTR ANNUAL STORMWATER MS4 FEE 2017 2,000.00

04/25/2017 43473 SUBURBAN AUTO SUPPLY FUEL CLEANER 19.98
ADAPTER 10.29

30.27

04/25/2017 43474 VERIZON WIRELESS FEB 2017 MONTHLY INVOICE 161.85
MARCH 2017 MONTHLY INVOICE 277.18

439.03

04/28/2017 43475 STATE OF MICHIGAN FILING FEE/REVISED MUNICIPAL FINANACE AC 390.00

GEN TOTALS:
Total of 74 Checks: 313,125.82
Less 0 Void Checks: 0.00
Total of 74 Disbursements: 313,125.82

City Council Packet 42 May 08, 2017



City of Swartz Creek05/01/17

Building Permit List
2017

Permit No. Date Applicant Phone Tax ID No. Value of Const/Permit Fee Location Type of Construction

Building

PB1700010 04/03/17 (810) 938 8498 58-35-200-007 $59,000 $715.00 4140 MORRISH RD 48473-7900Com Add/Alter/Repair 0RBF Construction Inc

PB1700014 04/11/17 (248) 305 8181 58-35-576-020 $199,300 $1,270.00 4150 MORRISH RD 48473-7900Ind Add/Alter/Repair 0Envision Builders Inc

PB1700016 04/12/17 (317) 249 2012 58-35-751-001 $15,000 $245.00 8100 CIVIC DR 48473 Com Add/Alter/Repair 0Crown Castle

PB1700017 04/06/17 58-02-504-011 $0 $165.00 8399 MILLER RD 48473-1246Siding 0HOWARD, JOANN G

PB1700018 04/10/17 58-35-776-095 $8,580 $190.00 95 ASHLEY CIR 48473-1175Roofing 0WOOLARD, BRENDA

PB1700019 04/11/17 (810) 235 9866 58-36-529-007 $9,330 $195.00 7176 PARK RIDGE PKWY48473-1562Roofing 0Lockhart Roofing Co.

PB1700020 04/20/17 58-35-776-022 $15,000 $270.00 22 KINGSLEY 48473-1179Res Garage detached 0MCINTYRE, RONALD & SHERRY

Total: 7 Permits Value: $306,210 Fee Total: $3,050.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Electrical

PE1700010 04/11/17 (810) 397 6738 58-36-676-060 $0 $170.00 7200 LINDSEY DR 48473 Electrical 0American Electric LLC

PE1700011 04/11/17 (810) 397 6738 58-36-676-048 $0 $170.00 7191 LINDSEY DR 48473 Electrical 0American Electric LLC

Total: 2 Permits Value: $0 Fee Total: $340.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Mechanical

PM170013 04/11/17 (810) 742 8530 58-35-776-022 $0 $130.00 22 KINGSLEY 48473-1179Mechanical 0Goyette Mechanical

PM170014 04/11/17 (616) 887 0328 58-36-400-010 $0 $285.00 4276 KROGER DR 48473 Mechanical 0Armock Mechanical

PM170015 04/18/17 (810) 742 8530 58-25-576-009 $0 $160.00 3486 ELMS RD 48473-7913Mechanical 0Goyette Mechanical

PM170016 04/18/17 (810) 232 8270 58-36-527-024 $0 $140.00 4186 LOCUST LN 48473-1558Mechanical 0Leroy Shoemaker

PM170017 04/25/17 (810) 742 8530 58-36-651-177 $0 $130.00 4280 SPRINGBROOK DR48473-1706Mechanical 0Goyette Mechanical

City Council Packet 43 May 08, 2017



City of Swartz Creek05/01/17

Building Permit List
2017

Permit No. Date Applicant Phone Tax ID No. Value of Const/Permit Fee Location Type of Construction

Total: 5 Permits Value: $0 Fee Total: $845.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Plumbing

PP170005 04/03/17 (810) 742 4270 58-03-532-004 $0 $183.00 5176 HELMSLEY DR 48473-1140Plumbing 0Steve's Plumbing & Heating Co

Total: 1 Permits Value: $0 Fee Total: $183.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Zoning

PZ17-0004 04/13/17 (810) 404 8992 58-36-400-010 $0 $115.00 4276 KROGER DR 48473 Sign 0Thompson Builders LLC

PZ17-0005 04/26/17 58-35-200-013 $2,796 $25.00 8041 BRISTOL RD 48473-8501Fence 0PRIMM, KYLE & JENNIFER

Total: 2 Permits Value: $2,796 Fee Total: $140.00 Total Number of Dwelling Units 0

Fee Total:Permit Total: 17 Value: $4,558.00$309,006

Permit.DateIssued  Between  4/1/2017 12:00:00
AM AND 4/30/2017 11:59:59 PM

City Council Packet 44 May 08, 2017



Certificates With Inspections

StatusExpiresLast InspectionIssuedSinceDate AppliedAddressCertificate Number

05/01/2017

Certified04/25/201904/25/201704/25/201711/17/20165368 DURWOOD DRCR160074

CompliedCompletedMatt HartANicholsInitial

Certified04/24/201903/21/201704/24/201711/18/201611/18/20165069 SCHOOL STCR160117

CompliedCompletedMatt HartJ KeyInitial

Certified04/18/201904/18/201704/18/201711/18/201611/18/20165212 WINSHALL DRCR160126

CompliedCompletedMatt HartJKEYInitial

Population: Record Count: 3 

Certificate.DateIssued  Between  4/1/2017 12:00:00 AM
AND 4/30/2017 11:59:59 PM

All Records

City Council Packet 45 May 08, 2017



Parcel Number Inspection TypeAddress Scheduled

Inspection List
Completed Result

04/03/2017 04/03/2017 Partially Complied5297 SEYMOUR RD Site Inspection58-03-533-020

04/03/2017 04/03/2017 Approved7030 MILLER RD Final58-36-576-015

04/03/2017 04/03/2017 Approved5176 HELMSLEY DR Rough58-03-532-004

04/04/2017 04/04/2017 Approved5176 HELMSLEY DR Rough58-03-532-004

04/05/2017 04/05/2017 Approved4140 MORRISH RD Visqueen58-35-200-007

04/05/2017 04/05/2017 Approved5402 WINSHALL DR Open Roof58-03-580-004

04/07/2017 04/07/2017 Approved4276 KROGER DR Rough58-36-400-010

04/10/2017 04/10/2017 Approved5176 HELMSLEY DR Insulation58-03-532-004

04/11/2017 04/13/2017 No Change5014 FORD ST Status58-02-528-012

04/11/2017 04/12/2017 Complied7566 MILLER RD Status58-36-552-007

04/11/2017 04/13/2017 No Violation5297 SEYMOUR RD Status58-03-533-020

04/11/2017 04/13/2017 Violation(s)5429 WINSHALL DR Ordinance58-03-580-014

04/11/2017 04/13/2017 Violation(s)5166 GREENLEAF DR Ordinance58-03-533-073

04/11/2017 04/13/2017 No Violation5414 WINSHALL DR Ordinance58-03-580-002

04/11/2017 04/13/2017 No Violation5016 MC LAIN ST Site Inspection58-02-526-058

04/11/2017 04/12/2017 Disapproved158 BROOKFIELD Site Inspection58-35-776-158

04/11/2017 04/13/2017 Violation(s)5162 SEYMOUR RD Site Inspection58-03-531-076

04/11/2017 04/12/2017 Approved8500 CHESTERFIELD DR Final Zoning58-02-501-060

04/13/2017 04/13/2017 Approved4140 MORRISH RD Visqueen-South Building58-35-200-007

04/13/2017 04/13/2017 Approved7200 LINDSEY DR Rough58-36-676-060

04/13/2017 04/13/2017 Approved7191 LINDSEY DR Rough58-36-676-048

04/17/2017 04/17/2017 No Change8103 MILLER RD Status58-02-528-002

04/17/2017 04/17/2017 No Change7435 WADE ST Status58-01-502-100

04/17/2017 04/17/2017 Not Ready95 ASHLEY CIR Open Roof & Final58-35-776-095

04/17/2017 04/17/2017 Approved7191 LINDSEY DR Rough-Framing58-36-676-048

04/17/2017 04/17/2017 Approved7200 LINDSEY DR Rough-Framing58-36-676-060

04/18/2017 04/18/2017 Partially Complied5157 MORRISH RD Status58-01-100-013

04/18/2017 04/18/2017 Approved7191 LINDSEY DR Insulation58-36-676-048

04/18/2017 04/18/2017 Approved7200 LINDSEY DR Insulation58-36-676-060

04/18/2017 04/18/2017 Approved4150 MORRISH RD Footing58-35-576-020

04/18/2017 04/18/2017 Approved95 ASHLEY CIR Final58-35-776-095

04/18/2017 04/18/2017 Complied5212 WINSHALL DR Initial58-02-553-023

04/18/2017 04/18/2017 Partially Complied5366 WINSHALL DR Initial58-02-553-001

04/19/2017 04/19/2017 No Change5036 FIRST ST Status58-01-502-046

04/19/2017 04/19/2017 Partially Complied7445 WADE ST Citation58-01-502-099

04/19/2017 04/19/2017 No Change5090 FAIRCHILD ST Citation58-02-526-081City Council Packet 46 May 08, 2017



Parcel Number Inspection TypeAddress Scheduled

Inspection List
Completed Result

04/19/2017 04/19/2017 No Change9135 CHELMSFORD DR Citation58-03-528-003

04/19/2017 04/19/2017 No Change4134 JENNIE LN Citation58-36-526-014

04/19/2017 04/19/2017 No Change5256 DON SHENK DR Citation58-02-503-004

04/19/2017 04/19/2017 No Change5184 BIRCHCREST DR Status58-03-531-120

04/19/2017 04/19/2017 Complied5020 FORD ST Status58-02-528-009

04/20/2017 04/20/2017 Approved9278 CHESTERFIELD DR Final58-03-531-014

04/20/2017 04/20/2017 Partially Complied5111 MC LAIN ST Initial58-02-526-040

04/20/2017 04/20/2017 Partially Complied6071 MILLER RD Initial58-31-527-001

04/20/2017 04/20/2017 Partially Complied6061 MILLER RD Initial58-31-200-011

04/24/2017 04/24/2017 Approved5316 WINSHALL DR Status58-02-553-009

04/25/2017 04/25/2017 Violation(s)5014 FORD ST Letter58-02-528-012

04/25/2017 04/25/2017 Violation(s)4134 JENNIE LN Letter58-36-526-014

04/25/2017 04/25/2017 Complied5368 DURWOOD DR Initial58-03-533-117

04/25/2017 04/25/2017 Violation(s)7029 MILLER RD Initial58-36-577-008

04/26/2017 04/26/2017 Partially Complied5185 WINSHALL DR Initial58-02-503-098

04/26/2017 04/26/2017 Partially Complied8051 CRAPO ST Initial58-02-530-025

04/26/2017 04/26/2017 Locked Out5200 WINSHALL DR Initial58-02-553-025

04/27/2017 04/27/2017 Approved158 BROOKFIELD Site Inspection58-35-776-158

04/27/20175162 SEYMOUR RD Site Inspection58-03-531-076

04/27/20175166 GREENLEAF DR Status58-03-533-073

04/27/20175429 WINSHALL DR Status58-03-580-014

04/27/2017 04/27/2017 Approved4276 KROGER DR Insulation58-36-400-010

All RecordsPopulation:Inspections: 58

Inspection.DateTimeScheduled  Between  4/1/2017 12:00:00 AM AND 4/30/2017 11:59:59 PM

City Council Packet 47 May 08, 2017



Enforcements By Category 05/01/17

BLIGHT

StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

E17-010 Violation 04/04/175429 WINSHALL DR

E17-013 No Violation 04/04/17 04/13/175016 MC LAIN ST

E17-014 Violation 04/10/175162 SEYMOUR RD

Total  Entries: 3

BUILDING VIOLATIONS

StatusAddressEnforcement Number Filed Closed

E17-009 Closed 04/03/17 04/13/175297 SEYMOUR RD

E17-011 Inspection Pending 04/04/175166 GREENLEAF DR

E17-012 Closed 04/04/17 04/13/175414 WINSHALL DR

Total  Entries: 3

All RecordsPopulation:Total Records: 6
Enforcement.DateFiled  Between  4/1/2017 12:00:00 AM AND 4/30/2017 11:59:59 PM

City Council Packet 48 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 49 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 50 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 51 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 52 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 53 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 54 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 55 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 56 May 08, 2017



 POLICE SERVICE RECORD AGREEMENT 
  
 This Agreement, effective May __, 2017, is between the City of Swartz Creek 
(“City”), located at 8083 Civic Drive, Swartz Creek, Michigan 48473 and the Metro 
Police Authority (“the Authority”), located at 4029 W. Grand Blanc Road, Swartz Creek, 
Michigan 48473. 
 
 Recitals 
 
 Whereas, the City of Swartz Creek and Mundy Township recently established the 
Authority to combine their respective police departments into one entity; and 
 
 Whereas, the Authority may need access to certain law enforcement or 
personnel records that the City maintained before it joined the Authority and the City is 
willing to provide the Authority access to those records according to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF THE MUTUAL PROMISES AND 
COVENANTS CONTAINED HEREIN, THE CITY AND AUTHORITY AGREE THAT: 
 
 1. The City will provide, on mutually convenient dates and times, authorized 

representatives of the Authority access to law enforcement or personnel 
records that it created or maintained before the City joined the Authority; 

 
 2. The City shall promptly forward to the Authority requests made under the 

Michigan Freedom of Information Act (Act 442 of 1976) for any such 
records and the Authority agrees to assume all responsibility for fulfilling 
those requests pursuant to the provisions of Act 442 of 1976; 

 
 3. The City shall promptly forward to the Authority requests made under the 

Bullard-Plawecki Employee Right to Know Act (Act 397 of 1978) for any 
such records and the Authority agrees to assume all responsibility for 
fulfilling those requests pursuant to the provisions of Act 397 of 1978; 

 
 4. The City and Authority shall bear their respective costs and expenses 

associated with retrieving or copying these records or in complying with 
the terms of this Agreement. 

 
CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK    METRO POLICE AUTHORITY 
 
 
___________________________   __________________________ 
By: David Krueger      By: _______________________ 
Its: Mayor       Its:________________________ 
 
 

City Council Packet 57 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 58 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 59 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 60 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 61 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 62 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 63 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 64 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 65 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 66 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 67 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 68 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 69 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 70 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 71 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 72 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 73 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 74 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 75 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 76 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 77 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 78 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 79 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 80 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 81 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 82 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 83 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 84 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 85 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 86 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 87 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 88 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 89 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 90 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 91 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 92 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 93 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 94 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 95 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 96 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 97 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 98 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 99 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 100 May 08, 2017



Apr 27, 2017  10:20 am  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC (SW)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

COUNTY OF GENESEE
State of Michigan

2017 Defeasance of Genesee County Sanitary Sewage Disposal System No. 1 Bonds, Series 2006
(Western Trunk Extension Sewer Phase II)

Report Page

2017 Partial Defeasance
Sources and Uses of Funds .......................... 1
Summary of Bonds Refunded ......................... 2
Unrefunded Bond Debt Service ........................ 3
Prior Bond Debt Service ........................... 4
Savings .................................. 5
Escrow Requirements ............................ 6
Escrow Sufficiency ............................. 7
Escrow Statistics .............................. 8

2017 Defeasance - Clayton Township
Savings .................................. 9
Prior Bond Debt Service ........................... 10
Remaining Bond Debt Service ........................ 11
Summary of Bonds Refunded ......................... 12

2017 Defeasance - Gaines Township
Savings .................................. 13
Prior Bond Debt Service ........................... 14
Summary of Bonds Refunded ......................... 15

2017 Defeasance - City of Swartz Creek
Savings .................................. 16
Prior Bond Debt Service ........................... 17
Summary of Bonds Refunded ......................... 18

City Council Packet 101 May 08, 2017



Apr 27, 2017  10:20 am  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC (SW)    Page 1

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

COUNTY OF GENESEE
State of Michigan

2017 Defeasance of Genesee County Sanitary Sewage Disposal System No. 1 Bonds, Series 2006
(Western Trunk Extension Sewer Phase II)

2017 2017 2017
Defeasance - Defeasance - Defeasance -

Clayton Gaines City of Swartz
Sources: Township Township Creek Total

Other Sources of Funds:
Defeasance Contribution 251,125.30 649,432.84 458,970.19 1,359,528.33

251,125.30 649,432.84 458,970.19 1,359,528.33

2017 2017 2017
Defeasance - Defeasance - Defeasance -

Clayton Gaines City of Swartz
Uses: Township Township Creek Total

Refunding Escrow Deposits:
Cash Deposit 251,125.30 649,432.84 458,970.19 1,359,528.33

251,125.30 649,432.84 458,970.19 1,359,528.33

City Council Packet 102 May 08, 2017



Apr 27, 2017  10:20 am  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC (SW)    Page 2

SUMMARY OF BONDS REFUNDED

COUNTY OF GENESEE
State of Michigan

2017 Defeasance of Genesee County Sanitary Sewage Disposal System No. 1 Bonds, Series 2006
(Western Trunk Extension Sewer Phase II)

Maturity Interest Par Call Call
Bond Date Rate Amount Date Price

Genesee County Sanitary Sewer Disposal System No. 1 Bonds, Series 2006 (Clayton Township Portion), 2006CLAY:
BOND 05/01/2018 4.000% 651.33 07/01/2017 100.000

05/01/2019 4.000% 422.45 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2020 4.100% 193.58 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2021 4.150% 4,964.70 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2022 4.250% 4,735.82 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2023 4.250% 1,892.51 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2024 4.300% 1,663.63 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2025 4.350% 98,820.31 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2026 4.350% 135,977.00 07/01/2017 100.000

249,321.33

Genesee County Sanitary Sewer Disposal System No. 1 Bonds, Series 2006 (Gaines Township Portion), 2006GAIN:
BOND 05/01/2018 4.000% 58,210.13 07/01/2017 100.000

05/01/2019 4.000% 61,273.83 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2020 4.100% 64,337.51 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2021 4.150% 67,401.21 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2022 4.250% 70,464.90 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2023 4.250% 75,060.43 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2024 4.300% 78,124.13 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2025 4.350% 82,719.66 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2026 4.350% 87,315.20 07/01/2017 100.000

644,907.00

Genesee County Sanitary Sewer Disposal System No. 1 Bonds, Series 2006 (Swartz Creek Portion), 2006SWRZ:
BOND 05/01/2018 4.000% 41,138.54 07/01/2017 100.000

05/01/2019 4.000% 43,303.72 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2020 4.100% 45,468.91 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2021 4.150% 47,634.09 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2022 4.250% 49,799.28 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2023 4.250% 53,047.06 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2024 4.300% 55,212.24 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2025 4.350% 58,460.03 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2026 4.350% 61,707.80 07/01/2017 100.000

455,771.67

1,350,000.00

City Council Packet 103 May 08, 2017



Apr 27, 2017  10:20 am  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC (SW)    Page 3

UNREFUNDED BOND DEBT SERVICE

COUNTY OF GENESEE
State of Michigan

2017 Defeasance of Genesee County Sanitary Sewage Disposal System No. 1 Bonds, Series 2006
(Western Trunk Extension Sewer Phase II)

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

11/01/2017 15,732.50 15,732.50 15,732.50
05/01/2018 90,000 4.000% 15,732.50 105,732.50
11/01/2018 13,932.50 13,932.50 119,665.00
05/01/2019 95,000 4.000% 13,932.50 108,932.50
11/01/2019 12,032.50 12,032.50 120,965.00
05/01/2020 100,000 4.100% 12,032.50 112,032.50
11/01/2020 9,982.50 9,982.50 122,015.00
05/01/2021 100,000 4.150% 9,982.50 109,982.50
11/01/2021 7,907.50 7,907.50 117,890.00
05/01/2022 105,000 4.250% 7,907.50 112,907.50
11/01/2022 5,676.25 5,676.25 118,583.75
05/01/2023 115,000 4.250% 5,676.25 120,676.25
11/01/2023 3,232.50 3,232.50 123,908.75
05/01/2024 120,000 4.300% 3,232.50 123,232.50
11/01/2024 652.50 652.50 123,885.00
05/01/2025 30,000 4.350% 652.50 30,652.50
11/01/2025 30,652.50

755,000 138,297.50 893,297.50 893,297.50

City Council Packet 104 May 08, 2017



Apr 27, 2017  10:20 am  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC (SW)    Page 4

PRIOR BOND DEBT SERVICE

COUNTY OF GENESEE
State of Michigan

2017 Defeasance of Genesee County Sanitary Sewage Disposal System No. 1 Bonds, Series 2006
(Western Trunk Extension Sewer Phase II)

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

11/01/2017 28,584.99 28,584.99 28,584.99
05/01/2018 100,000 4.000% 28,584.99 128,584.99
11/01/2018 26,585.00 26,585.00 155,169.99
05/01/2019 105,000 4.000% 26,585.00 131,585.00
11/01/2019 24,485.00 24,485.00 156,070.00
05/01/2020 110,000 4.100% 24,485.00 134,485.00
11/01/2020 22,230.01 22,230.01 156,715.01
05/01/2021 120,000 4.150% 22,230.01 142,230.01
11/01/2021 19,740.00 19,740.00 161,970.01
05/01/2022 125,000 4.250% 19,740.00 144,740.00
11/01/2022 17,083.75 17,083.75 161,823.75
05/01/2023 130,000 4.250% 17,083.75 147,083.75
11/01/2023 14,321.25 14,321.25 161,405.00
05/01/2024 135,000 4.300% 14,321.25 149,321.25
11/01/2024 11,418.75 11,418.75 160,740.00
05/01/2025 240,000 4.350% 11,418.75 251,418.75
11/01/2025 6,198.75 6,198.75 257,617.50
05/01/2026 285,000 4.350% 6,198.75 291,198.75
11/01/2026 291,198.75

1,350,000 341,295.00 1,691,295.00 1,691,295.00

City Council Packet 105 May 08, 2017



Apr 27, 2017  10:20 am  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC (SW)    Page 5

SAVINGS

COUNTY OF GENESEE
State of Michigan

2017 Defeasance of Genesee County Sanitary Sewage Disposal System No. 1 Bonds, Series 2006
(Western Trunk Extension Sewer Phase II)

Present Value
Prior Refunding Annual to 06/01/2017

Date Debt Service Net Cash Flow Savings Savings @  1.5000000%

11/01/2017 28,584.99 28,584.99 28,584.99 28,407.55
05/01/2018 128,584.99 128,584.99 126,835.55
11/01/2018 26,585.00 26,585.00 155,169.99 26,028.09
05/01/2019 131,585.00 131,585.00 127,869.51
11/01/2019 24,485.00 24,485.00 156,070.00 23,616.51
05/01/2020 134,485.00 134,485.00 128,749.15
11/01/2020 22,230.01 22,230.01 156,715.01 21,123.46
05/01/2021 142,230.01 142,230.01 134,144.12
11/01/2021 19,740.00 19,740.00 161,970.01 18,479.17
05/01/2022 144,740.00 144,740.00 134,486.55
11/01/2022 17,083.75 17,083.75 161,823.75 15,755.36
05/01/2023 147,083.75 147,083.75 134,637.14
11/01/2023 14,321.25 14,321.25 161,405.00 13,011.76
05/01/2024 149,321.25 149,321.25 134,657.85
11/01/2024 11,418.75 11,418.75 160,740.00 10,220.77
05/01/2025 251,418.75 251,418.75 223,366.29
11/01/2025 6,198.75 6,198.75 257,617.50 5,466.12
05/01/2026 291,198.75 291,198.75 254,870.38
11/01/2026 291,198.75

1,691,295.00 0.00 1,691,295.00 1,691,295.00 1,561,725.35

Savings Summary

PV of savings from cash flow 1,561,725.35
Less: Prior funds on hand (1,359,528.33)

Net PV Savings 202,197.02

City Council Packet 106 May 08, 2017



Apr 27, 2017  10:20 am  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC (SW)    Page 6

ESCROW REQUIREMENTS

COUNTY OF GENESEE
State of Michigan

2017 Defeasance of Genesee County Sanitary Sewage Disposal System No. 1 Bonds, Series 2006
(Western Trunk Extension Sewer Phase II)

Period Principal
Ending Interest Redeemed Total

07/01/2017 9,528.33 1,350,000.00 1,359,528.33

9,528.33 1,350,000.00 1,359,528.33

City Council Packet 107 May 08, 2017



Apr 27, 2017  10:20 am  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC (SW)    Page 7

ESCROW SUFFICIENCY

COUNTY OF GENESEE
State of Michigan

2017 Defeasance of Genesee County Sanitary Sewage Disposal System No. 1 Bonds, Series 2006
(Western Trunk Extension Sewer Phase II)

Escrow Net Escrow Excess Excess
Date Requirement Receipts Receipts Balance

06/01/2017 1,359,528.33 1,359,528.33 1,359,528.33
07/01/2017 1,359,528.33 (1,359,528.33)

1,359,528.33 1,359,528.33 0.00

City Council Packet 108 May 08, 2017



Apr 27, 2017  10:20 am  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC (SW)    Page 8

ESCROW STATISTICS

COUNTY OF GENESEE
State of Michigan

2017 Defeasance of Genesee County Sanitary Sewage Disposal System No. 1 Bonds, Series 2006
(Western Trunk Extension Sewer Phase II)

Modified Yield to Yield to Perfect Value of
Total Duration Receipt Disbursement Escrow Negative Cost of

Escrow Escrow Cost (years) Date Date Cost Arbitrage Dead Time

2017 Defeasance - Clayton Township, Global Proceeds Escrow:
251,125.30 251,125.30

2017 Defeasance - Gaines Township, Global Proceeds Escrow:
649,432.84 649,432.84

2017 Defeasance - City of Swartz Creek, Global Proceeds Escrow:
458,970.19 458,970.19

1,359,528.33 1,359,528.33 0.00 0.00

Delivery date 06/01/2017

City Council Packet 109 May 08, 2017



Apr 27, 2017  10:20 am  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC (SW)    Page 9

SAVINGS

Clayton Township
County of Genesee
State of Michigan

2017 Cash Defeasance of Township's portion of 2006 Western Trunk Sewage Bonds
Analysis as of April 21, 2017

Prior Present Value
Debt Refunding Annual to 06/01/2017

Date Service Net Cash Flow Savings Savings @  1.5000000%

11/01/2017 5,411.92 5,411.92 5,411.92 5,378.33
05/01/2018 6,063.25 6,063.25 5,980.76
11/01/2018 5,398.90 5,398.90 11,462.15 5,285.80
05/01/2019 5,821.35 5,821.35 5,656.98
11/01/2019 5,390.45 5,390.45 11,211.80 5,199.25
05/01/2020 5,584.03 5,584.03 5,345.87
11/01/2020 5,386.48 5,386.48 10,970.51 5,118.36
05/01/2021 10,351.18 10,351.18 9,762.71
11/01/2021 5,283.46 5,283.46 15,634.64 4,946.00
05/01/2022 10,019.28 10,019.28 9,309.51
11/01/2022 5,182.83 5,182.83 15,202.11 4,779.83
05/01/2023 7,075.34 7,075.34 6,476.61
11/01/2023 5,142.61 5,142.61 12,217.95 4,672.39
05/01/2024 6,806.24 6,806.24 6,137.87
11/01/2024 5,106.84 5,106.84 11,913.08 4,571.06
05/01/2025 103,927.15 103,927.15 92,331.31
11/01/2025 2,957.50 2,957.50 106,884.65 2,607.95
05/01/2026 138,934.50 138,934.50 121,601.79
11/01/2026 138,934.50

339,843.31 0.00 339,843.31 339,843.31 305,162.34

Savings Summary

PV of savings from cash flow 305,162.34
Less: Prior funds on hand (251,125.30)

Net PV Savings 54,037.04

City Council Packet 110 May 08, 2017



Apr 27, 2017  10:20 am  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC (SW)    Page 10

PRIOR BOND DEBT SERVICE

Clayton Township
County of Genesee
State of Michigan

2017 Cash Defeasance of Township's portion of 2006 Western Trunk Sewage Bonds
Analysis as of April 21, 2017

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

11/01/2017 5,411.92 5,411.92 5,411.92
05/01/2018 651.33 4.000% 5,411.92 6,063.25
11/01/2018 5,398.90 5,398.90 11,462.15
05/01/2019 422.45 4.000% 5,398.90 5,821.35
11/01/2019 5,390.45 5,390.45 11,211.80
05/01/2020 193.58 4.100% 5,390.45 5,584.03
11/01/2020 5,386.48 5,386.48 10,970.51
05/01/2021 4,964.70 4.150% 5,386.48 10,351.18
11/01/2021 5,283.46 5,283.46 15,634.64
05/01/2022 4,735.82 4.250% 5,283.46 10,019.28
11/01/2022 5,182.83 5,182.83 15,202.11
05/01/2023 1,892.51 4.250% 5,182.83 7,075.34
11/01/2023 5,142.61 5,142.61 12,217.95
05/01/2024 1,663.63 4.300% 5,142.61 6,806.24
11/01/2024 5,106.84 5,106.84 11,913.08
05/01/2025 98,820.31 4.350% 5,106.84 103,927.15
11/01/2025 2,957.50 2,957.50 106,884.65
05/01/2026 135,977.00 4.350% 2,957.50 138,934.50
11/01/2026 138,934.50

249,321.33 90,521.98 339,843.31 339,843.31

Notes:
  Analysis assumes Township is responsible for 47.7112% of the 2006 Western Trunk Sewer Bonds
  Assumes a payoff date of June 1, 2017
  Assumes a discount rate of 1.50%

City Council Packet 111 May 08, 2017



Apr 27, 2017  10:20 am  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC (SW)    Page 11

REMAINING BOND DEBT SERVICE

Clayton Township
County of Genesee
State of Michigan

2017 Cash Defeasance of Township's portion of 2006 Western Trunk Sewage Bonds
Analysis as of April 21, 2017

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

11/01/2017 15,732.50 15,732.50 15,732.50
05/01/2018 90,000 4.000% 15,732.50 105,732.50
11/01/2018 13,932.50 13,932.50 119,665.00
05/01/2019 95,000 4.000% 13,932.50 108,932.50
11/01/2019 12,032.50 12,032.50 120,965.00
05/01/2020 100,000 4.100% 12,032.50 112,032.50
11/01/2020 9,982.50 9,982.50 122,015.00
05/01/2021 100,000 4.150% 9,982.50 109,982.50
11/01/2021 7,907.50 7,907.50 117,890.00
05/01/2022 105,000 4.250% 7,907.50 112,907.50
11/01/2022 5,676.25 5,676.25 118,583.75
05/01/2023 115,000 4.250% 5,676.25 120,676.25
11/01/2023 3,232.50 3,232.50 123,908.75
05/01/2024 120,000 4.300% 3,232.50 123,232.50
11/01/2024 652.50 652.50 123,885.00
05/01/2025 30,000 4.350% 652.50 30,652.50
11/01/2025 30,652.50

755,000 138,297.50 893,297.50 893,297.50

City Council Packet 112 May 08, 2017



Apr 27, 2017  10:20 am  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC (SW)    Page 12

SUMMARY OF BONDS REFUNDED

Clayton Township
County of Genesee
State of Michigan

2017 Cash Defeasance of Township's portion of 2006 Western Trunk Sewage Bonds
Analysis as of April 21, 2017

PRI - Prior Debt

Maturity Interest Par Call Call
Bond Date Rate Amount Date Price

Genesee County Sanitary Sewer Disposal System No. 1 Bonds, Series 2006 (Clayton Township Portion), 2006CLAY:
BOND 05/01/2018 4.000% 651.33 07/01/2017 100.000

05/01/2019 4.000% 422.45 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2020 4.100% 193.58 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2021 4.150% 4,964.70 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2022 4.250% 4,735.82 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2023 4.250% 1,892.51 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2024 4.300% 1,663.63 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2025 4.350% 98,820.31 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2026 4.350% 135,977.00 07/01/2017 100.000

249,321.33

City Council Packet 113 May 08, 2017



Apr 27, 2017  10:20 am  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC (SW)    Page 13

SAVINGS

Gaines Township
County of Genesee
State of Michigan

2017 Cash Defeasance of Township's portion of 2006 Western Trunk Sewage Bonds
Analysis as of April 21, 2017

Prior Present Value
Debt Refunding Annual to 06/01/2017

Date Service Net Cash Flow Savings Savings @  1.5000000%

11/01/2017 13,577.51 13,577.51 13,577.51 13,493.23
05/01/2018 71,787.64 71,787.64 70,810.95
11/01/2018 12,413.31 12,413.31 84,200.95 12,153.27
05/01/2019 73,687.14 73,687.14 71,606.48
11/01/2019 11,187.83 11,187.83 84,874.97 10,790.99
05/01/2020 75,525.34 75,525.34 72,304.15
11/01/2020 9,868.92 9,868.92 85,394.26 9,377.67
05/01/2021 77,270.13 77,270.13 72,877.26
11/01/2021 8,470.34 8,470.34 85,740.47 7,929.32
05/01/2022 78,935.24 78,935.24 73,343.43
11/01/2022 6,972.96 6,972.96 85,908.20 6,430.76
05/01/2023 82,033.39 82,033.39 75,091.51
11/01/2023 5,377.93 5,377.93 87,411.32 4,886.19
05/01/2024 83,502.06 83,502.06 75,302.13
11/01/2024 3,698.26 3,698.26 87,200.32 3,310.26
05/01/2025 86,417.92 86,417.92 76,775.70
11/01/2025 1,899.11 1,899.11 88,317.03 1,674.65
05/01/2026 89,214.31 89,214.31 78,084.42
11/01/2026 89,214.31

791,839.34 0.00 791,839.34 791,839.34 736,242.39

Savings Summary

PV of savings from cash flow 736,242.39
Less: Prior funds on hand (649,432.84)

Net PV Savings 86,809.55

City Council Packet 114 May 08, 2017



Apr 27, 2017  10:20 am  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC (SW)    Page 14

PRIOR BOND DEBT SERVICE

Gaines Township
County of Genesee
State of Michigan

2017 Cash Defeasance of Township's portion of 2006 Western Trunk Sewage Bonds
Analysis as of April 21, 2017

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

11/01/2017 13,577.51 13,577.51 13,577.51
05/01/2018 58,210.13 4.000% 13,577.51 71,787.64
11/01/2018 12,413.31 12,413.31 84,200.95
05/01/2019 61,273.83 4.000% 12,413.31 73,687.14
11/01/2019 11,187.83 11,187.83 84,874.97
05/01/2020 64,337.51 4.100% 11,187.83 75,525.34
11/01/2020 9,868.92 9,868.92 85,394.26
05/01/2021 67,401.21 4.150% 9,868.92 77,270.13
11/01/2021 8,470.34 8,470.34 85,740.47
05/01/2022 70,464.90 4.250% 8,470.34 78,935.24
11/01/2022 6,972.96 6,972.96 85,908.20
05/01/2023 75,060.43 4.250% 6,972.96 82,033.39
11/01/2023 5,377.93 5,377.93 87,411.32
05/01/2024 78,124.13 4.300% 5,377.93 83,502.06
11/01/2024 3,698.26 3,698.26 87,200.32
05/01/2025 82,719.66 4.350% 3,698.26 86,417.92
11/01/2025 1,899.11 1,899.11 88,317.03
05/01/2026 87,315.20 4.350% 1,899.11 89,214.31
11/01/2026 89,214.31

644,907.00 146,932.34 791,839.34 791,839.34

Notes:
  Analysis assumes Township is responsible for 30.6369% of the 2006 Western Trunk Sewer Bonds
  Assumes a payoff date of June 1, 2017
  Assumes a discount rate of 1.50%

City Council Packet 115 May 08, 2017



Apr 27, 2017  10:20 am  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC (SW)    Page 15

SUMMARY OF BONDS REFUNDED

Gaines Township
County of Genesee
State of Michigan

2017 Cash Defeasance of Township's portion of 2006 Western Trunk Sewage Bonds
Analysis as of April 21, 2017

PRI - Prior Debt

Maturity Interest Par Call Call
Bond Date Rate Amount Date Price

Genesee County Sanitary Sewer Disposal System No. 1 Bonds, Series 2006 (Gaines Township Portion), 2006GAIN:
BOND 05/01/2018 4.000% 58,210.13 07/01/2017 100.000

05/01/2019 4.000% 61,273.83 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2020 4.100% 64,337.51 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2021 4.150% 67,401.21 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2022 4.250% 70,464.90 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2023 4.250% 75,060.43 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2024 4.300% 78,124.13 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2025 4.350% 82,719.66 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2026 4.350% 87,315.20 07/01/2017 100.000

644,907.00

City Council Packet 116 May 08, 2017



Apr 27, 2017  10:20 am  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC (SW)    Page 16

SAVINGS

City of Swartz Creek
County of Genesee
State of Michigan

2017 Cash Defeasance of Township's portion of 2006 Western Trunk Sewage Bonds
Analysis as of April 21, 2017

Prior Present Value
Debt Refunding Annual to 06/01/2017

Date Service Net Cash Flow Savings Savings @  1.5000000%

11/01/2017 9,595.56 9,595.56 9,595.56 9,536.00
05/01/2018 50,734.10 50,734.10 50,043.85
11/01/2018 8,772.79 8,772.79 59,506.89 8,589.02
05/01/2019 52,076.51 52,076.51 50,606.06
11/01/2019 7,906.72 7,906.72 59,983.23 7,626.27
05/01/2020 53,375.63 53,375.63 51,099.13
11/01/2020 6,974.61 6,974.61 60,350.24 6,627.43
05/01/2021 54,608.70 54,608.70 51,504.15
11/01/2021 5,986.20 5,986.20 60,594.90 5,603.85
05/01/2022 55,785.48 55,785.48 51,833.61
11/01/2022 4,927.96 4,927.96 60,713.44 4,544.78
05/01/2023 57,975.02 57,975.02 53,069.02
11/01/2023 3,800.71 3,800.71 61,775.73 3,453.19
05/01/2024 59,012.95 59,012.95 53,217.86
11/01/2024 2,613.65 2,613.65 61,626.60 2,339.44
05/01/2025 61,073.68 61,073.68 54,259.28
11/01/2025 1,342.14 1,342.14 62,415.82 1,183.51
05/01/2026 63,049.94 63,049.94 55,184.17
11/01/2026 63,049.94

559,612.35 0.00 559,612.35 559,612.35 520,320.62

Savings Summary

PV of savings from cash flow 520,320.62
Less: Prior funds on hand (458,970.19)

Net PV Savings 61,350.43

City Council Packet 117 May 08, 2017



Apr 27, 2017  10:20 am  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC (SW)    Page 17

PRIOR BOND DEBT SERVICE

City of Swartz Creek
County of Genesee
State of Michigan

2017 Cash Defeasance of Township's portion of 2006 Western Trunk Sewage Bonds
Analysis as of April 21, 2017

Period Annual
Ending Principal Coupon Interest Debt Service Debt Service

11/01/2017 9,595.56 9,595.56 9,595.56
05/01/2018 41,138.54 4.000% 9,595.56 50,734.10
11/01/2018 8,772.79 8,772.79 59,506.89
05/01/2019 43,303.72 4.000% 8,772.79 52,076.51
11/01/2019 7,906.72 7,906.72 59,983.23
05/01/2020 45,468.91 4.100% 7,906.72 53,375.63
11/01/2020 6,974.61 6,974.61 60,350.24
05/01/2021 47,634.09 4.150% 6,974.61 54,608.70
11/01/2021 5,986.20 5,986.20 60,594.90
05/01/2022 49,799.28 4.250% 5,986.20 55,785.48
11/01/2022 4,927.96 4,927.96 60,713.44
05/01/2023 53,047.06 4.250% 4,927.96 57,975.02
11/01/2023 3,800.71 3,800.71 61,775.73
05/01/2024 55,212.24 4.300% 3,800.71 59,012.95
11/01/2024 2,613.65 2,613.65 61,626.60
05/01/2025 58,460.03 4.350% 2,613.65 61,073.68
11/01/2025 1,342.14 1,342.14 62,415.82
05/01/2026 61,707.80 4.350% 1,342.14 63,049.94
11/01/2026 63,049.94

455,771.67 103,840.68 559,612.35 559,612.35

Notes:
  Analysis assumes City is responsible for 21.6519% of the 2006 Western Trunk Sewer Bonds
  Assumes a payoff date of June 1, 2017
  Assumes a discount rate of 1.50%

City Council Packet 118 May 08, 2017



Apr 27, 2017  10:20 am  Prepared by PFM Financial Advisors LLC (SW)    Page 18

SUMMARY OF BONDS REFUNDED

City of Swartz Creek
County of Genesee
State of Michigan

2017 Cash Defeasance of Township's portion of 2006 Western Trunk Sewage Bonds
Analysis as of April 21, 2017

PRI - Prior Debt

Maturity Interest Par Call Call
Bond Date Rate Amount Date Price

Genesee County Sanitary Sewer Disposal System No. 1 Bonds, Series 2006 (Swartz Creek Portion), 2006SWRZ:
BOND 05/01/2018 4.000% 41,138.54 07/01/2017 100.000

05/01/2019 4.000% 43,303.72 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2020 4.100% 45,468.91 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2021 4.150% 47,634.09 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2022 4.250% 49,799.28 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2023 4.250% 53,047.06 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2024 4.300% 55,212.24 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2025 4.350% 58,460.03 07/01/2017 100.000
05/01/2026 4.350% 61,707.80 07/01/2017 100.000

455,771.67

City Council Packet 119 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 120 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 121 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 122 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 123 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 124 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 125 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 126 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 127 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 128 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 129 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 130 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 131 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 132 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 133 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 134 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 135 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 136 May 08, 2017



  
 

STANDARD LIGHTING CONTRACT 

(COMPANY OWNED) FORM 548 
  

  Contract Number:  100000431294

  
Notification Number:  1038592171

Part I 

Effective date of agreement:  6/30/2017   

Company: 
CONSUMERS ENERGY COMPANY Customer:  Swartz Creek 

A Michigan Corporation 
ONE ENERGY PLAZA 
JACKSON, MI 49201-2357 

Customer Type:  City 

  County: Genesee 

  ZIP Code:  48473

Lighting Type:  General Unmetered Experimental Lighting Rate GU-XL

Initial Term: 1 year(s) beginning with the Effective Date of Agreement stated above. 

Part II 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS, is attached hereto and is a part of this Agreement. CUSTOMER ACKNOWLEDGES 

HAVING READ SAID TERMS AND CONDITIONS. 

CONSUMERS ENERGY Customer:  Swartz Creek 

  Customer Type:    City

CE Representative Signature: 

  

  
Customer Representative Signature: 

  

  

CE Representative Name: 

 
  
CE Representative Title: 

 

Print Name:  

Title:  

Clerk Attest:  

Form 548 05-2014 

Page 1 of 5 

City Council Packet 137 May 08, 2017



Standard Lighting Contract Terms and Conditions 

1. The Company agrees to furnish the Customer with lighting service respecting the luminaires, lamps 

and other equipment constituting the installation(s) listed in Part I and also to furnish lighting service 

respecting any additional luminaires, lamps and other equipment to be installed hereunder as may be 

authorized by the Customer through execution of an Authorization for Change in Standard Lighting 

Contract, attached to and made a part of this Agreement as Form 547. 

 

   

 

2. The Company's service lines necessary to supply the energy for said lighting equipment shall be 

constructed in the public streets and highways of the Customer, or on private property, as mutually 

agreed between the Company and the Customer. In cases where such lines are to be constructed 

upon private property, the Customer shall obtain and furnish to the Company adequate written 

easements granting permission to install and maintain such lines. 
 

3. Neither party shall be liable to the other for damages for any act, omission or circumstance 

occasioned by or in consequence of any act of God, labor disturbance, act of the public enemy, war, 

insurrection, riot, fire, storm or flood, explosion, breakage or accident to machinery or equipment, or 

by any other cause or causes beyond such party's control, including any curtailment, order, regulation 

or restriction imposed by governmental, military or lawfully established civilian authorities, or by the 

making of necessary repairs upon the property or equipment of either party hereto; provided, however, 

that the Company's responsibility for interruptions in service, phase failure or reversal, or variations in 

the service characteristics shall be as provided in the Company's Electric Rate Book as filed with and 

approved by the Michigan Public Service Commission and such amendments thereof as may be filed 

with and approved by the Michigan Public Service Commission from time to time. A copy of said 

Electric Rate Book will be furnished to the Customer upon request. 

  

4. The Customer shall pay the Company for the lighting service herein provided for in accordance with 

the Company's applicable lighting rate, and in accordance with such revisions and amendments 

thereof, supplements thereto, or substitutions therefor as may be filed with and approved by the 

Michigan Public Service Commission from time to time 
 

5. The Company shall render to the Customer, as soon as possible after the first day of each month, a 

bill for all lighting service furnished hereunder during the preceding month. Such bills shall be due and 

payable within twenty-one days after their issuance 

 

6. The Company agrees to furnish a service for lighting and the Customer agrees to take service for 

lighting in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Company’s General Service Unmetered 

Lighting Rate GUL and General Unmetered Experimental Lighting Rate GU-XL in accordance with such 

revisions and amendments thereof, supplements thereto, or substitutions therefore as may be filed 

with and approved by the Michigan Public Service Commission. 

Form 548 05-2014 

Page 2 of 5 

City Council Packet 138 May 08, 2017



 

 

7. Further, the Company will, under the terms and conditions hereof and of the Company's General 

Service Unmetered Lighting Rate GUL and General Unmetered Experimental Lighting Rate GU-XL and 

such revisions and amendments thereof, supplements thereto, or substitutions therefor as may be 

filed with and approved by the Michigan Public Service Commission from time to time and at such 

locations as may be authorized by the Customer through execution of an Authorization for Change in 

Standard Lighting Contract (Form 547), relocate any lighting equipment which is included in the initial 

Company-owned installation or in the additional Company-owned lighting equipment identified in Part 

I, provided that: 

a. Upon relocation of any of such lighting equipment, the Customer shall reimburse the Company 

for the Company's actual costs of such relocation regardless of the time period that such 

equipment has been installed, and  

b. The relocated equipment shall conform with the provisions in such application rates 
 

8. In addition, the Company will, upon termination of this Agreement by the Customer or breach of this 

Agreement by the Customer resulting in termination  of this Agreement, remove all of the aforesaid 

Company-owned lighting equipment which is then installed and not thereupon covered by another 

lighting contract.  Upon removal of all of such lighting equipment, upon termination of this Agreement 

as aforesaid, the Customer shall reimburse the Company for the Company’s actual costs of removing 

such equipment regardless of the time period that such equipment has been installed. The Company 

reserves the right to require special contractual arrangements respecting the replacement of any of 

the Company-owned lighting equipment or the removal thereof prior to the termination of this 

Agreement.    

 

9. This Agreement shall become effective on the Effective Date of Agreement identified in Part I and shall 

continue in effect for an initial term as stated in Part I and from year to year thereafter until 

terminated by mutual consent or upon twelve months written notice given by either party to the other. 

This Agreement, when effective, shall supersede all existing contracts with relation to the lighting 

service herein provided for. 
  

10. This Agreement may be executed and delivered in counterparts, including by a facsimile or an 

electronic transmission thereof, each of which shall be deemed an original. Any document generated 

by the parties with respect to this Agreement, including this Agreement, may be imaged and stored 

electronically and introduced as evidence in any proceeding as if original business records. Neither 

party will object to the admissibility of such images as evidence in any proceeding on account of 

having been stored electronically. 

 

11. Additional Items: 

None

Form 548 05-2014 

Page 3 of 5 

City Council Packet 139 May 08, 2017



 

Part III 

RESOLUTION 

RESOLVED, that it is hereby deemed advisable to enter into a contract with Consumers Energy Company of 

Jackson, Michigan, for furnishing lighting service within the  of  for a period of   year(s) and 

thereafter from year to year, in accordance with the terms of the contract heretofore submitted to and 

considered by this commission   council   board; and  

 

RESOLVED, further, that the                                           and the Clerk be and are authorized and directed to 

execute such contract on the behalf of the . 

City Swartz Creek 1

City

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN  
COUNTY OF  Genesee

 

I,                                                         , Clerk of the  of , do hereby certify that the foregoing 

resolution was duly adopted by the commission   council   board of said municipality, at the meeting 

held on                                            . 

City Swartz Creek 

Dated: 
 
                                                

  

  

  Municipal Customer Type:  City

Form 548 05-2014 

Page 4 of 5 

City Council Packet 140 May 08, 2017



GENERAL UNMETERED EXPERIMENTAL LIGHTING RATE GU-XL 

  

Number of  
Luminaires  

Nominal 

Watts 
Luminaire

Type 
Fixture Type Fixture Style Install 

Remove 
Location 

1 84  LED Post Top Install Chesterfield Dr 

& Seymour Rd  

3 54  LED Post Top Install Chesterfield Dr, 

between Seymour Rd 

& Daval Dr

1 84  LED Post Top Install Chesterfield Dr 

& Daval Dr  

1 54  LED Post Top Install Chesterfied Dr, E of 

Daval Dr 

1 84  LED Post Top Install Chesterfield Dr 

& Winston 

1 84  LED Post Top Install W Miller Rd & Winston 

1 84  LED Post Top Install Durwood Dr 

& Worchester Dr

3 54  LED Post Top Install Worchester Dr, 

between Durwood 

& Daval Dr

1 84  LED Post Top Install Worchester Dr & Daval 

Dr

1 54  LED Post Top Install Worchester Dr, S of 

Cappy Ln 

1 84  LED Post Top Install Worchester Dr & Cappy 

Ln  

Comments: 

For the installation of LED Post Top streetlights which are replacing High Pressure Sodium Cobrahead 

streetlights.  Currently being billed under Contract Account # 100000431294.

Form 548 05-2014 

Page 5 of 5 

City Council Packet 141 May 08, 2017



  
  
  

  

  
 

AUTHORIZATION FOR CHANGE IN 

STANDARD LIGHTING CONTRACT 

(COMPANY-OWNED) FORM 547

  

  Contract Number:  100000431294

Consumers Energy Company is authorized as of  , by the  of , to make 

changes, as listed below, in the lighting system(s) covered by the existing Standard Lighting Contract 

between the Company and the  of , dated . 
  

6/30/2017 City Swartz Creek

City Swartz Creek 11/1/2014

Lighting Type:

 General Service Unmetered Lighting Rate GUL, Standard High Intensity Discharge

Notification Number(s): 

1038592171

Construction Work Order Number(s): 

  

DD# 10788923

Except for the changes in the lighting system(s) as herein authorized, all provisions of the aforesaid Standard 

Lighting Contract dated  shall remain in full force and effect.  11/1/2014

 of  City Swartz Creek

By:  

(Signature) 

  

  
  

  
  

(Printed) 

  
  
  

  
Its 

(Title) 

  
  
  

This Agreement may be executed and delivered in counterparts, including by a facsimile or an electronic 

transmission thereof, each of which shall be deemed an original. Any document generated by the parties with 

respect to this Agreement, including this Agreement, may be imaged and stored electronically and introduced as 

evidence in any proceeding as if original business records. Neither party will object to the admissibility of such 

images as evidence in any proceeding on account of having been stored electronically.   

Form 547 11-2014 

Page 1 of 3 

City Council Packet 142 May 08, 2017



 

  

RESOLUTION 

RESOLVED, that it is hereby deemed advisable to authorize Consumers Energy Company to make changes in 

the lighting service as provided in the Standard Lighting Contract between the Company and the  of 

, dated , in accordance with the Authorization for Change in Standard Lighting 

Contract dated  ,  

heretofore submitted to and considered by this commission  council  board ;and  

 
RESOLVED, further, that the                                        Clerk be and are authorized to execute such authorization 

for change on the behalf of the . 

City

Swartz Creek 11/1/2014

6/30/2017

City

 

STATE OF MICHIGAN  
COUNTY OF Genesee 

 

I,                                                          , Clerk of the  of , do hereby certify that the foregoing 

resolution was duly adopted by the commission  council  board of said municipality, at the meeting 

held on                                         . 

City Swartz Creek

  

  

  

Dated: 
 
                                                      

Municipal Customer Type:  City

Form 547 11-2014 

Page 2 of 3 

City Council Packet 143 May 08, 2017



  

  

GENERAL SERVICE UNMETERED LIGHTING RATE GUL, STANDARD HIGH INTENSITY DISCHARGE 

  

Number of  
Luminaires  

Nominal 

Watts 
Luminaire 

Type 
Fixture Type Fixture Style Install 

Remove 
Location 

1 100  HPS Cobrahead Remove Chesterfield Dr & Seymour Rd  

3 100  HPS Cobrahead Remove Chesterfield Dr, between 

Seymour Rd & Daval Dr

1 100  HPS Cobrahead Remove Chesterfield Dr & Daval Dr  

1 100  HPS Cobrahead Remove Chesterfied Dr, E of Daval Dr 

1 100  HPS Cobrahead Remove Chesterfield Dr & Winston 

1 100  HPS Cobrahead Remove W Miller Rd & Winston 

1 100  HPS Cobrahead Remove Durwood Dr & Worchester Dr

3 100  HPS Cobrahead Remove Worchester Dr, between 

Durwood & Daval Dr

1 100  HPS Cobrahead Remove Worchester Dr & Daval Dr

1 100  HPS Cobrahead Remove Worchester Dr, S of Cappy Ln 

1 100  HPS Cobrahead Remove Worchester Dr & Cappy Ln  

Form 547 11-2014 

Page 3 of 3 

City Council Packet 144 May 08, 2017



 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK 

 
Genesee County, Michigan 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 432 

 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK BY ADDING SECTIONS ____ 
THROUGH ____ TO CHAPTER __, ARTICLE __ OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK TO REGULATE 
AND RESTRICT THE USE OF GROUNDWATER IN CERTAIN 
AREAS OF THE CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK DUE TO THE 
PRESENCE OF GROUNDWATER CONTAMINATION RESULTING 
FROM A RELEASE PURSUANT TO PART 213, LEAKING 
UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS, OF THE NATURAL 
RESOURCE AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ACT, 1994 PA 
451 AS AMENDED. 

 
THE CITY OF SWARTZ CREEK ORDAINS: 
 
SECTION 1.  AMENDMENT.  The Code of Ordinances of the City of Swartz Creek (City), 
Michigan is amended by adding Sections ____ through ____ in Chapter __, Article __, to read 
as follows: 
 
SECTION 2.  FINDINGS.  The City Council finds that the use of certain groundwater wells 
and water supplies from such wells for human consumption or other purposes may constitute 
a public health risk and endanger the safety of the residents of the City.  The identified public 
health risk affects premises that are located on or in the vicinity o f  sites that are the source 
or location of contaminated groundwater, or where there is a known and identified threat of 
contaminated groundwater from a release.  The City Council has determined that it is in the 
best interests of the public health, safety and welfare to prohibit certain uses of groundwater 
from wells at properties located in the vicinity of such contaminated sites in order to minimize 
the public health and welfare risk and protect the City’s residents. 
 
SECTION 3.  DEFINITIONS.  For the purposes of this Ordinance, the words and phrases 
listed below shall have the following meanings: 

A. Affected Premises means a parcel of property any part of which is located within 
a restricted zone. 

B. Applicant mean s a person who applies for the establishment of a restricted zone 
and accompanying regulations pursuant to this Chapter. 

C. Contaminated Groundwater means groundwater in which there is present 
concentrations of materials that exceed the residential drinking water criteria 
established by the MDEQ in operational memoranda or rules promulgated 

City Council Packet 145 May 08, 2017



 

 

 

pursuant to Part 213, Leaking Underground Storage Tanks (MCL 324.21301a, 
et seq.), of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA  
451  as amended, MCL 324.101, et seq. 

D. Groundwater means underground water within the zone of saturation. 

E. MDEQ means the Michigan Department of Environmental Quality or its 
successor agency. 

F. Person means any individual, co-partnership, corporation, association, club, joint 
venture, estate, trust, and any other group or combination acting as a unit, and 
the individuals constituting such group or unit. 

G. Release means a “ release” as defined in Part 213, Leaking Underground Storage 
Tanks (MCL 324.21301a, et seq.) of the Natural Resources and Environmental 
Protection Act, as amended (MCL 324.101, et seq.) involving an underground 
storage tank system. 

H. Water Well Restricted Zone or Restricted Zone means an area or areas described 
within this chapter within which the prohibition of groundwater wells and the 
use of groundwater applies.  A map of each Water Well Restricted Zone shall 
be included in the section of this Ordinance adopted for that Water Well 
Restricted Zone pursuant to Sections 4 and 5, below. 

I. Well means an opening in the surface of the earth for the purpose of removing fresh 
water through non-mechanical or mechanical means for any purpose other than 
a public emergency or conducting response actions that are consistent with the 
Michigan Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, the 
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, the 
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, or any other applicable statute. 

 
SECTION 4.  WATER WELL RESTRICTED ZONES. 

A. The following described areas in the City shall be Water Well Restricted Zones 
as defined under this Ordinance.  The Water Well Restricted Zones may be 
referred to by reference to the names provided in the caption preceding their 
descriptions: 

1. General Name and Description 
 
An area described as commencing from the southeast corner of the Miller 
Road and Hayes Street intersection, then south along the east right of way 
line for Hayes Street to Ingalls Street, then easterly along the north right of 
way line for Ingalls Street to Morrish Road, then northerly along the west 
right of way line for Morrish Road until Miller Road; and then west along 
the south right of way line for Miller Road to the point of commencement 
at Hayes Street. 

City Council Packet 146 May 08, 2017



 

 

 

2. A scaled map illustrating the restricted zone is attached as “Exhibit lA.”  
The legal description of the water well restricted zone is contained within 
the attached “Exhibit lB.”  For sites regulated under Part 213, the exhibit 
must include the property tax identification number and legal description 
for each Affected Premises within the Water Well Restricted Zone. 

3. The application and all supporting documentation shall be maintained by 
the City Clerk. 

B. Except as provided in Section 8 of this Ordinance and after the effective date of 
this Ordinance, no person or legal entity shall install or allow or permit or provide 
for the installation or utilization of a well on any Affected Premises on which 
the person or legal entity has an ownership interest, or lessee or tenant interest, or 
control within the Water Well Restricted Z one.  A f f e c t e d  P r e m i s e s  within 
the water well restricted zone shall be serviced only by public water supply as 
described in Chapter 19, Article II of the Code of Ordinances. 

 
SECTION 5.  ADDING NEW RESTRICTIVE ZONES.   The City Council may amend this 
ordinance to add new Restricted Zones in accordance with the following procedure. 

A. An Applicant shall first file a request with the City Manager advising the City 
of the Applicant's interest in establishing a Restricted Zone pursuant to this 
Ordinance.  The notice shall describe the proposed boundaries of the proposed 
Restricted Zone, the reason for the proposed Restricted Zone, a preliminary map 
of the proposed Restricted Zone, the proposed time schedule for implementing 
the proposed Restricted Zone, and the proposed groundwater use restrictions to 
be applicable within the Restricted Zone.  The City Manager will, after notifying 
the City Council of the notice of intent, respond to the Applicant with a preliminary 
and non-binding indication of the City’s willingness to consider the proposed 
Restricted Zone.  The City Manager or other designated City officer may also be 
an Applicant for purposes of initiating this procedure. 

B. The Applicant shall seek and obtain the MDEQ’s approval of the proposed 
Restricted Zone and proposed groundwater use restrictions to be applicable 
therein prior to filing an application with the City.  In order to be considered 
by the City, the Restricted Zone must minimize or eliminate the need for 
restrictive covenants on property that is not owned or operated by and is not 
subject to remediation by a party responsible for the contaminated 
groundwater.  The creation of a Restricted Zone should have the effect of 
eliminating the need for non-responsible parties to impose environmental 
restrictive covenants on their properties or otherwise be beneficial to the 
owners or occupants of property that was not the site of a release. 

C. If any Affected Premise s which will be subject to the new Restricted Zone is 
not already served by City water service, the Applicant shall ensure such service 
is, if it is possible from an engineering perspective to do so, served with City 
water service at no cost to the property owners or occupant.  The Applicant shall 

City Council Packet 147 May 08, 2017



 

 

 

also provide for the abandonment and plugging of conforming, nonconforming 
or irrigation wells on any Affected Premises without cost to the owners or 
occupants of the premises and in compliance with Section 7.  In the event an 
existing irrigation well is abandoned and plugged, at the owner’s request, the 
Applicant shall also bear the cost of connecting the irrigation system to the 
City water utility and installing a separate meter and all associated plumbing.  
Proof of the provision of such service and plugging/abandonment of such wells 
shall be required or an escrow account shall be established therefor in an amount 
and form acceptable to the City Council. 

D. After the MDEQ approves the proposed Restricted Zone as an alternative to 
restrictive covenants on property on which no release has occurred, an Applicant 
shall file with the City Manager a formal request to the City including, at a 
minimum, the following information.  The information can be in the form of a 
proposed remedial action plan, response activity plan, or corrective action plan 
or other similar document if appropriate cross-references are made for ease of 
reference. 

1. The name, address, telephone number, and e-mail address (Applicant 
only) of the Applicant, as well as each person having an interest as owner, 
tenant, easement holder or mortgagee in the real property which is the 
source or site of the contaminated groundwater, if known. 

2. The street address and legal description of the real property which is a 
source or site of the contaminated groundwater, if known, and the nature 
of the Applicant’s relationship to that property and involvement 
concerning the contaminated groundwater. 

3. The nature and extent of the contaminated groundwater and the 
contamination causing it, both in summary form  in plain English and 
in detail in technical terms, stating that the release is regulated under Part 
213; the types and concentrations of contaminants; a map or survey 
showing their current location; a statement of their likely or anticipated 
impact on groundwater and the nature of the risks presented by the use of 
the groundwater, as well as the likely or anticipated path of migration if 
not remediated or corrected and a detailed statement of any plan to 
remediate, correct, and/or contain the contamination. 

4. A detailed map and legal description of the proposed Restricted Zone. 

5. The street addresses and general description of all Affected Premises. 

6. The names, addresses (mailing and street), and telephone numbers (if 
already available) of the Owners of all Affected Premises. 

7. The location, status, and usage characteristics of all existing Groundwater 
Wells within the proposed Restricted Zone. 

City Council Packet 148 May 08, 2017



 

 

 

8. A detailed statement or description of the proposed regulation or prohibition 
of the use of existing and future Wells within the Restricted Zone needed 
to adequately protect the public from the potential health hazards 
associated with the contaminated Groundwater, including a description of 
permissible uses of such Wells, together with the written consent of the 
MDEQ to such uses of Groundwater. 

9. A description and time schedule for any actions the Applicant will take 
to implement any remediation plan, mitigate the adverse impact of the 
Restricted Zone (e.g., providing substitute water service), and to properly 
close and abandon any existing Wells subject to the use prohibition within 
the proposed Restricted Zone. 

10. A copy of the information submitted to the MDEQ concerning the proposed 
Restricted Zone, along with a written statement from an MDEQ 
representative with approval authority stating that the proposed Restricted 
Zone and use regulations have received MDEQ approval as part of the 
response actions for the Groundwater contamination.  The MDEQ's 
approval may be contingent upon the City’s establishment of the proposed 
Restricted Zone pursuant to this section. 

11. Copies of the notice provided to the County Health Department 
concerning the Restricted Zone and accompanying regulations, and the 
County Health Department’s written acknowledgment that it will not issue 
permits for prohibited Wells within the Restricted Zone. 

12. The Applicant also agrees to pay any additional costs beyond the 
established application fee necessary to properly evaluate the application.  
These may include, but are not limited to:  the fees of environmental 
consultants and legal counsel, and any per diem or other amounts paid to 
public officials for attending any special meetings, etc.  The Applicant shall 
also consent to the placement of a lien on the Applicant’s premises if the 
amounts due under this section are not paid within 30 days of the issuance 
of an invoice by the City. 

E. Along with the application, the Applicant shall pay an application fee and 
any related costs per the City’s fee schedule as adopted by the City Council.  
Any failure by the Applicant to pay fees and costs as required by this provision 
may result in the City’s discontinuance of its processing of the request to 
establish a Restricted Zone and can result in the filing of a lien against the 
premises of the Applicant. 

F. Once the City Manager or his or her designee is satisfied that the application 
is complete, the City Manager shall place the matter on the City Council agenda 
to set a time, date, and place for a public hearing on the application. 

G. Along with the application, the Applicant shall submit to the City Manager a list 

City Council Packet 149 May 08, 2017



 

 

 

of the Affected Premises including the Parcel ID, site address, and the mailing 
address for the owner, tenant, easement holder, or mortgagee of any Affected 
Premises, if known.  The City shall cause a written notice of the hearing to be sent 
by first class mail to all persons having an interest as owner, tenant, easement 
holder, or mortgagee in any of the Affected Premises.  The notice shall include 
a brief statement regarding the application fairly designed to inform the recipients 
of its main features and potential impact on the recipients in general.  The notice 
shall be mailed at least fifteen (15) days prior to the hearing.  The notice of 
hearing shall also be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the City 
at least fifteen (15) days before the hearing.  Affidavit of Publication shall be 
obtained by the City.  The notice shall also be mailed to the MDEQ representative 
who gave the approval of the proposed restricted zone and use regulations and 
the MDEQ District Supervisor for the MDEQ regulatory program with 
jurisdiction over the contaminated site. 

H. Upon the establishment of a new Restricted Zone (i.e., after the second reading 
and approval of the ordinance amendment), the City Clerk shall publish notice 
of the amendment to this Chapter in the manner required by law for ordinance 
amendments.  The Applicant shall give notice to the owners and occupants of 
all property on which wells are known to be located of the need to close and 
abandon Wells under this Chapter as amended. 

 
SECTION 6.  WELLS AFFECTING CONTAMINATED GROUNDWATER. 
 
No Well may be used or installed at any place in the City if the use of the Well will have the 
effect of causing the migration of contaminated Groundwater or a contaminated Groundwater 
plume to previously unimpacted Groundwater or adversely impacting any Groundwater 
treatment system, unless the Well is part of a MDEQ or United States Environmental Protection 
Agency approved Groundwater monitoring or remediation system. 
 
SECTION 7.  NON-CONFORMING W E L LS . 
 
Any existing Well, the use of which is prohibited by this Ordinance, shall be plugged or 
abandoned in conformance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, permit and license 
requirements, orders and directives of any governmental entity or agency of competent 
jurisdiction, or in the absence of an applicable law, rule, regulation, requirement, order, or 
directive, in conformance with the protocol developed consistent with the American Standards 
for Testing and Materials Standard No. D5299-92. 
 
SECTION 8.  EXCEPTIONS. 

A. Water service unavailable.  If the City of Swartz Creek water service is 
unavailable to an Affected Premises in the Restricted Zone, any Well on that 
Affected Premises shall be annually tested by a laboratory that is acceptable 
to and for chemical parameters specified by the MDEQ.  The results of that test 
shall be submitted to the MDEQ or the County Health Department for review.  
If the MDEQ or the County Health Department determines that the Well is safe 

City Council Packet 150 May 08, 2017



 

 

 

and suitable for use, and proof of that determination is delivered annually to the 
City of Swartz Creek, that the Well may be used.  No split or conveyance of 
Affected Premises shall be effective to render the City of Swartz Creek water 
services unavailable. 

B. Construction of de-watering wells.  Wells in the Restricted Zone used for 
construction de-watering are not prohibited by this Ordinance, provided that the 
water generated by that activity is properly handled and disposed in compliance 
with all applicable laws and regulations.  Any exacerbation caused by the use 
of Wells under this exception shall be the responsibility of the Person operating 
the de-watering Well, as provided in Part 201 of the Natural Resources and 
Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451, as amended. 

C. Groundwater monitoring and remediation Wells.  Wells used for Groundwater 
monitoring and/or remediation as part of response activity or corrective action 
approved by the MDEQ are not prohibited by this Ordinance. 

D. Processing activities.  If the MDEQ determines that the use of a Well for 
non-contact heating, cooling or processing activities will not cause the future 
migration of contaminated Groundwater, and proof of that determination is 
delivered to the City, the City Manager may execute a waiver allowing the use 
of the Well for the permitted purposes upon such terms and conditions that the 
MDEQ identifies. 

E. Public emergencies.  A Well may be used in the event of a public emergency. 

F. Surface Irrigation.  Upon review and approval by the MDEQ, existing Wells 
may be used for surface irrigation. 

G. Heat Exchange (Geothermal).  Upon review and approval by the MDEQ, 
geothermal Wells may be used if no impact by plume or influence on plume will 
occur with use of Well; or an unauthorized discharge may occur. 

H. Cathodic Protection.  Wells used to house devices that alleviate electrolytic 
corrosion of pipelines, underground tanks and other installations situated in a 
corrosive environment may be used upon review and approval by the MDEQ, if no 
impact by plume or influence on plume will occur with use of Well. 

 
SECTION 9.  PENALTY 

A. Any Person or legal entity who shall violate any provision of this Ordinance 
shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor offense punishable by imprisonment 
for not more than 90 days or by fine of not more than $500 or both such fine and 
imprisonment. 

B. Each act of violation and each day upon which such violation occurs or continues 
shall constitute a separate offense. 

City Council Packet 151 May 08, 2017



 

 

 

C. In addition, the City may seek an order from a court of appropriate jurisdiction 
to restrain any person from violating this Ordinance, including the collection of 
costs and attorney fees associated with such enforcement action.  Any Well in 
violation of this Ordinance shall also be declared and deemed a nuisance, subject 
to abatement, and shall be immediately taken out of service and lawfully 
abandoned consistent with all applicable state and local regulations.  Any person 
found to be in violation is subject to being ordered by a court of appropriate 
jurisdiction to properly and lawfully remove or abandon the Well. 

 
SECTION 10.  BUILDING OR IMPROVEMENT PERMIT. 
 
No permit for building, al teration or other required permit for a premises or improvement 
thereon shall be issued by the City for any Affected Premises found in violation of this 
Ordinance or where it is proposed to install or use a Well in violation of this Ordinance. 
 
SECTION 11.  NOTIF ICATION OF INTENT TO AMEND OR REPEAL. 
 
At least thirty (30) days prior to any amendment or repeal in whole or in part of this 
Ordinance, the City of Swartz Creek shall notify the Michigan Department of Environmental 
Quality, or its successor agency, of its intent to so act. 
 
SECTION 12.  PUBLISHING AND RECORDING. 
 
This Ordinance or an amendment to this Ordinance shall be published or  recorded as follows: 
 

A. Pursuant to Part 213, this Ordinance or an amendment to this Ordinance adding 
a Restricted Zone shall be filed with the Swartz Creek County Register of Deeds 
as an Ordinance affecting multiple properties. 

 
SECTION 13.  SEVERABILITY. 
 
If any article, section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance is held 
invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed 
a separate, distinct, and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining portions of the Ordinance, it being the intent of the City of Swartz Creek that this 
Ordinance shall be fully severable.  The City of Swartz Creek shall promptly notify the 
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality upon the occurrence of any event described in 
this section. 
 
SECTION 14.  CONFLICT WITH OTHER ORDINANCES 
 
All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with any of the provisions of this Ordinance are 
hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 15.  EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

City Council Packet 152 May 08, 2017



 

 

 

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect ten (10) days after its publication as provided by 
law. 
 
Adopted and signed this ____ day of ___________, 2017. 
 

City Council Packet 153 May 08, 2017



 

 

 

Exhibit 1A - Figure Indicating Water Well Restriction Zone 
 

  

City Council Packet 154 May 08, 2017



 

 

 

 
Exhibit 1B - List of Properties Included in the Groundwater Ordinance 

 
 
Steven Moore 
8067 Miller Road 
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
Parcel Number 58-02-529-021 
W 55 FT of LOT 2 BLK 1 AND W 55 FT OF LOT 4 BLK 1 VILLAGE OF SWARTZ CREEK 
SEC 2 T6N R5E 
 
Marie Lovegrove Revocable Trust / (Goin’ Postal and H&R Block) 
8057 Miller Road 
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
Parcel Number 58-02-529-020 
LOT 2 BLK 1 EXCEPT W 55 FT ALSO EXCEPT E 35 FT & LOT 4 BLK 1 EXCEPT W 55 FT 
ALSO EXCEPT E 35 FT VILLAGE OF SWARTZ CREEK SEC 2 T6N R5E 
 
Marie Lovegrove Revocable Trust / (Lovegrove’s Cake & Candy Center) 
8055 Miller Road  
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
same Parcel number as above 58-02-529-020  
LOT 2 BLK 1 EXCEPT W 55 FT ALSO EXCEPT E 35 FT & LOT 4 BLK 1 EXCEPT W 55 FT 
ALSO EXCEPT E 35 FT VILLAGE OF SWARTZ CREEK SEC 2 T6N R5E 
 
Marie Lovegrove Revocable Trust / (Assenmachers Cycling Center) 
8053 Miller Road 
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
Parcel Number 58-02-529-019 
E 35 FT OF LOT 2 BLK 1 & E 35 FT OF LOT 4 BLK 1 VILLAGE OF SWARTZ CREEK SEC 
2 T6N R5E 
 
Marie Lovegrove Revocable Trust          
8047 Miller Road 
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
Parcel number 58-02-529-018 
W 65 FT OF LOT 1 BLK 1 & W 65 FT OF LOT 3 BLK 1 VILLAGE OF SWARTZ CREEK SEC 
2 T6N R5E 
 

City Council Packet 155 May 08, 2017



 

 

 

Luea’s Properties Plus, LLC / Luea’s Pharmacy 
8021 Miller Road 
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
Parcel Number 58-01-100-047 
A PARCEL OF LAND BEG AT NW COR OF SEC TH E 150 FT TH S 130 FT TH S 130 FT TH 
W 20.88 FT TH N 10 FT TH W to SEC LINE TH N TO PL OF BEG SEC 1 T6N R5E (08) .42A 
FR 58-01-100-036/037/038/039 
 
Peitro Montini, Sr.  / Dave’s Pizzeria & Family  
8013 Miller Road 
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
Parcel Number 58-01-100-040 
A PARCEL OF LAND BEG 150 FT E OF NW COR OF SEC TH S 125 FT TH E 50 FT TH N 
125 FT TH W 50 FT TO PLACE OF BEG SEC 01 T6N R5E .14 A 
 
Nemecek and Sweeney, LLC   / Stallings Stained Glass            
8011 Miller Road 
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
Parcel Number 58-01-100-041 
A PARCEL OF LAND BEG 200 FT E OF NW COR OF SEC TH S 120 FT TH E 16 FT TH N 
120 FT TH W 16 FT TO PL OF BEG SEC 01 T6N R5E .04 A 
 
City of Swartz Creek 
5012 Holland Drive 
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
Parcel Number 58-02-529-017 
E 17.5 FT OF LOT 1 BLK 1 & E 100 FT OF LOT 3 BLK 1 & SCHOOL LOT VILLAGE OF 
SWARTZ CREEK SEC 2 T6N R5E 
 
Margaret Trecha et al / Zenith TV  
5015 Holland Drive 
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
Parcel Number  58-01-100-035 
A PARCEL OF LAND BEG S 0* 44 MIN W 140.92 FROM NW COR OF SEC TH S 88* 38 
MIN E 219 FT TH S 0* 44 MIN W 23.78 FT TH N 89* 17 MIN 20 SEC W 218.98 FT TH N 0* 
44 MIN E 26.29 FT TO PLACE OF BEG SEC 1 T6N R5E (76) 
 
Curtis May & Terry Lancaster-May 
5017 Holland Drive 
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
Parcel Number 58-01-100-034 
A PARCEL OF LAND BEG S 0* 44 MIN W 167.21 FT FROM NW COR OF SEC TH S 89* 17 
MIN 20 SEC E 218.98 FT TH S 38* 25 MIN 37 SEC W 73.58 FT TH S 88* 38 MIN E 90 FT TH 
S 14.50 FT TH W 16 RDS TH N 0* 44 MIN E 56.21 FT TO PLACE OF BEG SEC 1 T6N R5E 
(76) 
 

City Council Packet 156 May 08, 2017



 

 

 

5023 Holland House LLC / Hull Stephens & Associates Architects  
5023 Holland Drive 
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
Parcel Number 58-01-100-032 
A PARCEL OF LAND BEG S 0 DEG 44 MIN W 223.42 FT FROM NW COR OF SEC TH S 0 
DEG 44 MIN W 58 FT TH S 88 DEG 38 MIN E 129.55 FT TH N 38 DEG 25 MIN 57 SEC E 
72.68 FT TH N 88 DEG 38 MIN W 174 FT TO PL OF BEG SEC 1 T6N R5E (85) FR 5800003212 
 
Marla & Carla Martin 
5018 Holland Drive 
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
Parcel Number 58-02-529-005 
LOT 5 BLK 1 VILLAGE OF SWARTZ CREEK SEC 2 T6N R5E 
 
Jason Keene 
5026 Holland Drive 
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
Parcel Number 58-02-529-007 
LOT 7 BLK 1 VILLAGE OF SWARTZ CREEK SEC 2 T6N R5E 
 
Maureen Andrakowicz / Maureen Hunt 
5032 Holland Drive 
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
Parcel Number 58-02-529-009 
LOT 9 BLK 1 VILLAGE OF SWARTZ CREEK SEC 2 T6N R5E 
 
Terry Coy 
5019 Hayes 
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
Parcel Number 58-02-529-006 
LOT 6 BLK 1 VILLAGE OF SWARTZ CREEK SECT 2 T6N R5E 
 
Thomas & Kassandra Doty 
8032 Ingalls Street 
Swartz Creek, MI 48473 
Parcel Number 58-02-529-008 
LOTS 8 & 10 BLK  VILLAGE OF SWARTZ CREEK (77) 

City Council Packet 157 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 158 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 159 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 160 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 161 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 162 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 163 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 164 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 165 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 166 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 167 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 168 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 169 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 170 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 171 May 08, 2017



City Council Packet 172 May 08, 2017



 

 
                      K:\cd\CDBG 2018\2018-2020 Cooperative Agreements\Renew - City of Swartz Creek.docx 

 
April 21, 2017 
 

 

 

Connie Eskew, Clerk 

City of Swartz Creek 

8083 Civic Drive 

Swartz Creek, MI 48473 

 
SUBJECT:   Genesee County Community Development Block Grant Program Cooperative 

Agreements for Fiscal Years (FY) 2018 - 2020  

 

Dear Ms. Eskew: 

 

The Genesee County Metropolitan Planning Commission (GCMPC) is advising all communities, 

presently participating in the Genesee County Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 

Program, of the need to extend your community's existing CDBG Cooperative Agreement with 

Genesee County or to opt out of the CDBG Program. 
 

The Cooperative Agreement is a requirement of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 

Development (HUD), our sponsoring agency.  The agreement acts as a mechanism that 

establishes requirements and general procedures that Genesee County and local units of 

government must adhere to in order to qualify for CDBG Entitlement status for the FYs 2018 through 

2020.  CDBG Entitlement status automatically includes participation in the Home Investment 

Partnerships Program (HOME).  

 

Under the Continuation Clause in the original Agreement executed in 1994, a community has the 

right to retain Entitlement status under the Genesee County CDBG Program.  A community must 

indicate once every three years whether they choose to continue to participate in the program.  

This indication must be provided in the form of a letter from the Clerk of each respective local unit 

of government. 

 

Staff requests that you respond with a letter signed by the Clerk regarding the community's wish 

to remain in the Genesee County CDBG Program, or to opt out of the Program.  This letter must be 

received no later than June 16, 2017. 

 

Should you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact Anna Pinter of my 

staff at (810) 766-6542. 

 

Sincerely, 

 
Sheila Taylor, Principal Planner 

Genesee County Community Development Program 

 

cc:   Adam Zettel, City Manager 

City Council Packet 173 May 08, 2017



 

                      

                     K:\dyeoman\Community Impact\LUG letters\City of Swartz Creek Impact.docx 

April 27, 2017 

 

 

 

Adam Zettel, City Manager 

City of Swartz Creek 

8083 Civic Drive 

Swartz Creek, MI 48473 

 

SUBJECT: Local Impact of U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Funding 

 

Dear Mr. Zettel: 

 

Genesee County Metropolitan Planning Commission (GCMPC) has compiled data from 

the local units of government that participation in Genesee County’s Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) program and the HOME Investment Partnerships 

program.  Each participating local unit of government is receiving an overview of HUD 

funding invested in their community, along with information regarding the number of 

residents served through various community development projects.  The time period 

covers years 2001 – 2016, and one project has been highlighted for each community. A 

copy of the County summary and Home Improvement Program (HIP) map are included 

as well.  The information contained herein demonstrates the impact that these programs 

have in spurring community development, assisting vulnerable populations, and 

providing valuable services to the residents that live, work, and play in Genesee County.   

 

If you have any questions, or concerns, or would like to schedule a meeting to discuss the 

impact of these programs, please contact Sheila Taylor, Principal Planner, at (810) 766-

6547 or shtaylor@co.genesee.mi.us.  

 

Sincerely, 

 
 

Derek Bradshaw, Director-Coordinator 

Genesee County Metropolitan Planning Commission 

 

cc:  Connie Eskew, Clerk 

        Commissioner Ted Henry 

 

City Council Packet 174 May 08, 2017

mailto:shtaylor@co.genesee.mi.us


Genesee County Impact 2001 – 2016    

Community Development Program 

Over $475,000 Invested in Community Development 

22,818 people served in the last 10 years 

Funding Totals based on U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development programs administered by the                                              

Genesee County Metropolitan Planning Commission. 

City of Swartz Creek 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Public Service—$149,825                   Public Facility—$2,953                  Infrastructure—$221,962 

 

For more program information please contact Sheila Taylor, Principal Planner, at shtaylor@co.genesee.mi.us,  

call (810)257-3010, or visit gcmpc.org 

City of Swartz Creek—Infrastructure Improvements—$60,490 

City of Swartz Creek has benefited from the Community Development Block  Grant (CDBG) program by receiving more than 

$475,000 in funding that has been invested in various community development projects.  The above infrastructure improvements 

project, completed in 2013, improved the aesthetics of downtown with decorative sidewalks, stamped concrete, planters, and an         

ornamental retaining wall.  Since 2001, the City of Swartz Creek has invested CDBG funding in the following categories: 

Home Improvement Program (HIP) - 6 houses—$103,894 

City Council Packet 175 May 08, 2017



Genesee County Impact 2001 – 2016    

Community Development Program 

Over $48 Million Invested in Genesee County 
Approximately $35 Million in Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Funding 

Approximately $13 Million in HOME Investment Partnerships Funding 

  

  

Public Service  

Allocation—$1,935,259 

Public Service projects helps serve                               

over 14,000 seniors annually. 

Public Facilities and Improvements 

Allocation—$5,776,708 

Funding also helps with blight removal and demoli-

tion of hazardous structures like the Ramada Inn 
(above). 

Home Improvement Program (HIP) 

Allocation—$9,838,719 

The HIP program has funded improvements  

for 590 homes. 

Housing 

Allocation—$10,579,073 

Housing assistance for our most vulnerable  

populations is possible because of this funding, 

like Lockwood of Burton (above). 

Funding Totals based on U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development programs administered by the                                              

Genesee County Metropolitan Planning Commission. 
City Council Packet 176 May 08, 2017



!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!( !(

!( !(
!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!( !(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!( !(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!( !(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!( !(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
!(

!(

!(

Hegel Rd

S S
aginaw

 St

£¤23

§̈¦475

§̈¦69

OP13

§̈¦69
§̈¦69

§̈¦75

§̈¦75

§̈¦75

§̈¦475

OP21

OP57OP57

OP15

OP15

OP54

OP121

£¤23

£¤23

Home Improvement Program (HIP)
2001 - 2016 Projects

HIP Projects (590 Homes)!(

2 0 21

Miles

I

Community Development Block Grant
Housing Investments

HOME HIP - 141 Homes
$2,220,982 Invested

CDBG HIP - 449 Homes
$7,617,737 Invested

City Council Packet 177 May 08, 2017


	2017-05-08, Council Mtg Template
	TO:  Honorable Mayor, Mayor Pro-Tem & Council Members
	ROUTINE BUSINESS – REVISITED ISSUES / PROJECTS

	2017-04-24 April 24 Council Minutes
	Minutes 2017-05-03
	Check Register
	CheckRegister

	Building Permit April 2017
	Certificate With Inspections April 2017
	Inspection List April 2017
	Enforcements April  2017
	April 2017 DPS Reports
	Metro Records Agreement
	HTD Scan
	Western Trunk Sewer 2017 Partial Defeasance - Revised
	Fencing
	Carpet
	Standard Lighting Contract (installation)
	Authorization for Change in Standard Lighting Contract (removal of streetlights)
	Well Ordinance
	Comcast Franchise
	Gildner Opinion
	Swartz Creek Qtr I Summary Report 2017
	Renew - City of Swartz Creek - CDBG
	City of Swartz Creek Impact-CDBG
	Draft Budget FY 2017-2018
	Draft Budget Summary Sheet FY2017-2018



